Select Board Meeting
Monday, July 18", 2022, 6:30 p.m.
Nowak Room, Town Offices
10 Front Street, Exeter NH 03833

Meeting in the Nowak Room at the Town Office Building. For virtual access, see instructions below.

Watch this meeting on Channel 22, or EXTV Facebook https://www.facebook.com/ExeterTV, or YouTube
https://www.voutube.com/c/ExeterTV9S8 .

To access the meeting via Zoom, click this link: https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/88181359644

To access the meeting via telephone, call +1 646 558 8656 and enter Webinar ID 881 8135 9644
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak.

Use the “Raise Hand” button to alert the Chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9.

More access instruction found here: https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-town-meetings

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues.

AGENDA

Call Meeting to Order

Non Public Session —RSA 91:3 2 a

Board Interviews — Zoning Board of Adjustment; Planning Board

Police Officer Swearing In — Carlos Garcia

Public Comment

Proclamations/Recognitions

a. Proclamations/Recognitions
7. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: June 27", 2022

8. Appointments

9. Discussion/Action Items

a. Sewer Lateral Program — Public Works — Paul Vlasich, Town Engineer

b. Sidewalk Construction Funding Request, Demolition of 149 Kingston Road
Garage — Jennifer Perry, DPW Director

c. Drought Update — Jennifer Perry, DPW Director

d. Community Power Aggregation Committee Plan Amendments — Lew Hitzrot,
Community Power Aggregation Committee

e. CDBG Public Hearing: 10 Hampton Road — Greg Bisson, Parks/Recreation
Director and Donna Lane, CDBG Grant Administrator

f. Park Street Common Playground Update — Greg Bisson, Parks/Recreation
Director

o U P W




10.

11.
12,
13.

g. Emergency Management Performance Grant Acceptance — Eric Wilking, Fire
Chief
h. Welfare Quarterly Report — Pam McElroy, Welfare Administrator
i. Select Board 2022 Goals Report — Select Board
Regular Business
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions
b. Permits & Approvals
c. Town Manager’s Report
d. Select Board Committee Reports
e. Correspondence
Review Board Calendar
Non-Public Session
Adjournment

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair
Select Board

Posted: 7/15/22 Town Office, Town Website

Persons may request an accommodation for a disabling condition in order to attend
this meeting. It is asked that such requests be made with 72 hours notice.

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE




Town of Exeter \nterview!

Town Manager’s Office ) 1\ I}‘
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833 b'H0 P AN

Statement of Interest
Boards and Committee Membership

= r 2ehn
Committee Selection: %'/‘V'L\‘A"’j“e E:)@‘}{j(,-z-),\/‘

New| | Re-Appointment || Regular | | Alternate [ ]

Name: \-Dla('ﬂl/"l._ : CHA'(ZT (AT Email: (Qﬂl/\o‘v"tfﬂtﬂf {CAN L eV
Address: [p 5 Xm;\\ H’LLLAM: Eﬁ;"’?apphone U@?/Q‘&f*f%ﬁ)

7 2
Registered Voter: Yes E/ No D
Statement of Interest/experience/background/qualification, etc. (fesume can be attached).
i\XT o P+ NANQ B, AeresME Tole (Hs -
T o LT e [ (T (o TRE A B A | SE VICE
T !Z‘L’:ﬁur? ~nte THETRSERILE Od THE ST EcT | 3042\

Ao \ge \\I TFRECTES o SEEY N (THE W\MT/
ke BECIME et o Mo T (- Boded
Ve LIBEZRATINS,

if this is re-appointment to a position, please list all training sessions you have attended relative to your appointed position.

| understand that: 1. this application will be presented to the Exeter Select Board only for the position specified above
and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; 2. The Town Manager and Select Board may nominate someone
who has not filed a similar application; 3. this application will be available for public inspection.

After submitting this application for appointment to the Town Manager:
e The application will be reviewed and you will be scheduled for an interview with the Select Board
e Following the interview the Board will vote on your potential appointment at the next regular meeting

e |f appointed, you will receive a letter from the Town Manager and will be required to complete paperwork with the Town
Clerk prior to the start of your service on the committee or board.

1 certify that | am 18 years of age or ¢gld
Slgnature//\/)/\'\'@- E., ‘

To be completed by Select Board upon appointment:

Date Appointed: Term Ending: Full: Alternate:




]
lmemew W/:ob

Town of Exeter Mon(la;,j Y 18,2022
720 pm

Town Manager’s Office
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833

Statement of Interest
Boards and Committee Membership

—7 @ /\
Committee Selection: Z {-\ T

New |:| Re-Appointment [:I Regular D Alternate [9/

Name: ) ©Ci1 il Pf? tije | Email: QN £ € ‘%'Jt@hwnﬁ@k
nadress: 7 Wlav, [vep Boe FExele phone: L33 O3~ F5E

(
Registered Voter: Yes B/ No |:|

Statement of 1nterest/experlence/background/quallflcatlon etc. (resume can be attached).

L have e viosly Q%UQﬂp on H% EWJT, 144 \//mﬂl a‘ﬂﬂawe%w
2 M@d i t7a 500 e g Va st e & ol [ feo
con fipue covyind Y% daon alsa 2 BA oz
L o v e id~ it HHe au“nxm ocdrvgvies 6ufé
A Qﬂf a2 le ceor s\ke of (rS

If this is re-appointment to a position, please list all training sessions you have attended relative to your appointed position.

| understand that: 1. this application will be presented to the Exeter Select Board only for the position specified above
and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; 2. The Town Manager and Select Board may nominate someone
who has not filed a similar application; 3. this application will be available for public inspection.

After submitting this application for appointment to the Town Manager:
e The application will be reviewed and you will be scheduled for an interview with the Select Board
e Following the interview the Board will vote on your potential appointment at the next regular meeting
e |f appointed, you will receive a letter from the Town Manager and will be required to complete paperwork with the Town
Clerk prior to the start of your service on the committee or board.

| certify that | am 18 years of age or older

Signature:@wéﬂd 7/% Date: & /&9/99\

To be completed by Select Board upon appointment:

Date Appointed: Term Ending: Full: Alternate:




Proclarpations/Recognitions

PN



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD » EXETER, NH » 03833-4540 « (603) 773-6157 -FAX (603) 772-1355
Www.exeterih. gov

July 13, 2022

Select Board
Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Re: Exeter Public Works Employee of the Quarter for Summer 2021
Dear Sclect Board members:

It is our pleasure to inform you that Wayne Almon, Highway Heavy Equipment Operator, has
been awarded the Employee of the Quarter for Summer 2021.

Nominations said that Wayne earned this recognition for the following reasons.
Wayne has been helping the Maintenance Team with winter operations set up. He is
always aware of equipment needs and lets it be known if things need attention. This helps
keep the fleet running top notch so the team can keep rolling safely & efficiently.

During the 17 years Wayne has been employed with the Public Works Department, he has
received the Employee of the Quarter award two other times, in Spring 2013 and Winter 2017.
Wayne is an experienced and knowledgeable heavy equipment operator. He is dedicated and
very reliable. He is also gifted with a great sense of humor.

The Employee of the Quarter Program was created 23 years ago, in 1999, to recognize
outstanding performance and dedication to the Exeter Public Works Department and Exeter
community. This honor is awarded to an individual for special achievements to advance the
mission of the Department while aligned with the Department’s core values of Teamwork,
Integrity and Safety. Nominations can be made by any Town employee or citizen, and the
selection is made by the Employee of the Quarter Committee.

On behalf of the Exeter Public Works Department, we are pleased to notify you of the extra
effort and commitment that Wayne has demonstrated to warrant this recognition.

Gorrs. %Jaf

Harry H. Lindsay, ITI, Chairman
Public Works Director Employee of the Quarter Committee

Sincerely,

cc: Human Resources, personnel file



Exeter Public Works Employee of the Quarter (EOQ) Summer 2021 recipient Wayne Almon (middle),
Highway Heavy Equipment Operator, receiving award from Harry Lindsay (right), Mechanic Foreman
and EOQ Committee Chairman, and Jennifer Perry (left), Public Works Director



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH * 03833-4540 « (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov

July 13, 2022

Select Board
Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Re: Exeter Public Works Employee of the 2021 Fall Quarter
Dear Select Board members:

It is our pleasure to inform you that Larry Pond, Water/Sewer Maintenance Technician, has
been awarded the Employee of the 2021 Fall Quarter.

Nominations said that Larry earned this recognition for the following reasons.
For his teamwork efforts to assist with the Holiday Lighting in downtown Exeter in early
December. Larry arrived at the Town Hall with a pad and paper ready for a list of projects.
Beth Dupell, Exeter Holiday Parade Head Elf, proceeded to explain to Larry all the
projects she needed done by Friday and it was on a Wednesday. Larry was able to get it all
done with help from Chris Eaton. Maintenance team staff members were out sick and
Larry stepped in to help.

This is not the first time Larry has been the recipient of the Employee of the Quarter award. He
received the award in Spring 2019 and Winter 2020. This reflects the high regard his coworkers
and the Public Works Department hold for him. He is a dedicated professional and a master
electrician. He is a hard worker and generous sharing his expertise.

The Employee of the Quarter Program was created 23 years ago, in 1999, to recognize
outstanding performance and dedication to the Exeter Public Works Department and Exeter
community. This honor is awarded to an individual for special achievements to advance the
mission of the Department while aligned with the Department’s core values of Teamwork,
Integrity and Safety. Nominations can be made by any Town employee or citizen, and the
selection is made by the Employee of the Quarter Committee.

On behalf of the Exeter Public Works Department, we are pleased to notify you of the extra
effort and commitment that Scott has demonstrated to warrant this recognition.

Ty Ao =

Harry H. Lindsay, III, Chairman
Employee of the Quarter Committee

Sincerely,

Jennifer R. P : , P.E.
Public Works Director

cc: Human Resources, personnel file



Exeter Public Works Employee of the Quarter (EOQ) Fall 2021 recipient Larry Pond (right), Water/Sewer
Maintenance Technician, receiving award from Harry Lindsay (left), Mechanic Foreman and EOQ
Committee Chairman



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH ¢ 03833-4540 « (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov

July 13,2022

Select Board
Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Re: Exeter Public Works Employee of the 2022 Winter Quarter
Dear Select Board members:

It is our pleasure to inform you that Dan Morrow, Highway Foreman, has been awarded the
Employee of the 2022 Winter Quarter.

Nominations said that Dan earned this recognition for the following reasons.
When the highway general foreman left to take another job, Dan stepped up to take the
lead in working directly with the Highway Superintendent and assumed a lot more
responsibility. For several months, Exeter had many snow and ice events including
Christmas Day where a small crew worked 23 hours straight. Dan is a proven leader,
always finding a way to get the job done keeping the citizens of Exeter safe.

During his 18 years employed with the Public Works Department, Dan previously received the
Employee of the Quarter award in the 2015 Winter Quarter. Dan is a dedicated first responder
who takes his responsibilities seriously, but also makes good use of humor to lighten the day.

The Employee of the Quarter Program was created 23 years ago, in 1999, to recognize
outstanding performance and dedication to the Exeter Public Works Department and Exeter
community. This honor is awarded to an individual for special achievements to advance the
mission of the Department while aligned with the Department’s core values of Teamwork,
Integrity and Safety. Nominations can be made by any Town employee or citizen, and the
selection is made by the Employee of the Quarter Committee.

On behalf of the Exeter Public Works Department, we are pleased to notify you of the extra
effort and commitment that Scott has demonstrated to warrant this recognition.

Harry H. Lindsay, ITI, Chairman
Public Works Director Employee of the Quarter Committee

Sincerely,

cc: Human Resources, personnel file



Exeter Public Works Employee of the Quarter (EOQ) Winter 2022 recipient Dan Marrow (right), Highway
Foreman, receiving award from Harry Lindsay (left), Mechanic Foreman and EOQ Committee Chairman



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD » EXETER, NH + 03833-4540 » (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exelernh.gov

July 13, 2022

Select Board
Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Re: Exeter Public Works Employee of the 2022 Spring Quarter
Dear Select Board members:

It is our pleasure to inform you that Scott Butler, Highway Heavy Equipment Operator, has
been awarded the Employee of the 2022 Spring Quarter.

Nominations said that Scott earned this recognition for the following reasons.
Scott has displayed teamwork by volunteering to help the water/sewer department during
water main flushing season. Scott has continued assisting the water/sewer department
since April keeping sewer problem areas cleaned, marking out water and sewer utility
locations, and cleaning pump stations. The department appreciates all of his help.

Scott has held several positions within the Public Works Department since his joining the Town
in 1988, including laborer, heavy truck driver, wastewater treatment plant operator, senior
operator and highway heavy equipment operator. Scott’s diverse work experience and his
willingness to assist in many aspects of the Department’s operations make him a valued
member of the team. His 34 years of service exemplifies his dedication to the Town of Exeter.

The Employee of the Quarter Program was created 23 years ago, in 1999, to recognize
outstanding performance and dedication to the Exeter Public Works Department and Exeter
community. This honor is awarded to an individual for special achievements to advance the
mission of the Department while aligned with the Department’s core values of Teamwork,
Integrity and Safety. Nominations can be made by any Town employee or citizen, and the
selection is made by the Employee of the Quarter Committee.

On behalf of the Exeter Public Works Department, we are pleased to notify you of the extra
effort and commitment that Scott has demonstrated to warrant this recognition.

Sincerely,

Jennifer R. Pérry, P.E. ( Harry H. Lindsay, Il1, Chairman
Public Works Director Employee of the Quarter Committee

cc: Human Resources, personnel file



Exeter Public Works Employee of the Quarter (EOQ) Spring 2022 recipient Scott Butler (left), Highway
Heavy Equipment Operator, receiving award from Matthew Berube (right), Water/Sewer Manager and
EOQ Committee representative






Select Board Meeting
Monday June 27, 2022
6:40 PM
Nowak Room, Town Offices
Draft Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order
Members present: Julie Gilman, Molly Cowan, Niko Papakonstantis, Nancy Belanger, Town
Manager Russ Dean, and Assistant Town Manager Melissa Roy were present at this meeting.

Members Absent. Lovey Roundtree OIiff
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Papakonstantis at 6:40 PM.

2. Non-Public Session
MOTION: Ms. Cowan moved to enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3li(a). Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0 and the meeting entered non-public at 6:42 PM.

3. Board Interviews
a. David Mirsky for the Zoning Board of Adjustment

The meeting reconvened at 6:57 PM.

4. Public Comment
a. There was no public comment at this time.
5. Proclamations/Recognitions
a. There were no proclamations/recognitions at this time.
6. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: June 13, 2022
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the Select Board minutes from June 13, 2022 as
presented. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

7. Appointments
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to appoint David Mirsky as an alternate to the Zoning Board of
Adjustment, term to expire April 2025. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to appoint Kristen Murphy as Exeter’s representative on the
COAST Board of Directors as recommended by the Town Manager and Town Planner. Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

8. Discussion/Action ltems
a. Quarterly Financial Report - Q4 2021
New Finance Director Corey Stevens gave the financial update for 2021.



in the General Fund, the 2021 unassigned fund balance was $1.855 M,
vs the 2020 balance $2.23M. For the budget vs actual, revenues were at
$20.58M actual vs a $20.17M budget, revenues were $411,000 overbudget [we
made more than anticipated in the budget] and expenditures were $1.44M
underbudget. Positions open in 2021 lead to wages, tax and benefits being
underbudget.

Major components of General Fund revenue were property taxes, at
$52.9M; we assessed $52.9M and paid $41.5M to the schools and county, and
retained $12.4M for general operations. There was a 97.2% collection rate as of
12/31/21. Motor vehicles was $145,000 above estimates; building permits were
$38,500 over estimate, which was a rebound over 2020, and more in line with
2019. Meals & Rooms Tax was $1.126M in 2021, which was $347,000 over
2020. In 2021, the State increased the portion of the Meals and Rooms tax
distributed back to local governments.

Income from Departments was $101,000 over estimate, partly due to an
insurance premium return of $114,000 and blue bag sales being over estimates.
This was offset by a Fire Department revenue which was underbudget by
$35,000, due to lost revenue on the discontinued master box alarms, and a
Planning revenue which was under by $11,000. Transfer of funds were in excess
of budget by $87,000. The EMS revolving fund contributed $221,000; 95% of
EMS fund balance is moved into the General Fund. Trustees of the Trust Funds
moved in $54,000 related to sick leave trusts and retirements.

Mr. Papakonstantis said property taxes were at 96.5% collected in 2020
and 97.2% in 2021, is that in line with normal? Mr. Dean said yes, right in line.
Collections were strong despite the pandemic.

Mr. Stevens mentioned that at the end of the year, the Select Board votes
on how much to use from fund balance, and the budget broke that out separately
starting in 2021.

In expenditures, the General Fund was $18.7M spent, or 93% spent
against a budget of $20.17M. There were notable expenditure savings in Police,
Fire, and Public Works related to positions going unfilled. The General
Government budget was $2,000 under budget HR was $15,500 underbudget due
to wages and benefits changes from reorganization. Legal was overspent by
$12,000, which can be caused by unexpected events. Finance was 97% spent,
or $25,000 underspent. IT wages and benefits were underspent by $29,000 due
to hiring in 2021. Contract services were underspent by $8,500, which was offset
by overspending in Internet Services and Network Supplies. Planning and
Building were 88% spent, with a surplus of $67,000. In Planning, part time wages
were underspent by $18,700, since the part time person worked fewer hours than
budgeted. The Studies line was underspent, due to the timing of spending on a
re-zoning study that happened in 2022. In Inspections, a vacant Electrical
Inspector position led to a savings of $39,000. Doug Eastman has been filling in
on this work. Economic development was slightly underbudget.



The Police Department also felt the impact of staffing shortages, and
spent $3.5M for 2021 against a $3.8M budget, or 93% spent. Fire was also
underspent, mostly due to wages, with $3.7M expenditures vs 3.9M budget, or
95% spent. Public Works was $4.84M spent or 87% of budget, with $716,000
underspent, mostly due to open positions. The timing of paving projects resulted
in an underspend of $33,000. Tree maintenance was underspent by $11,000.
Snow Removal spent $250,000 or 83% of the budget; this line is always
unpredictable. Solid Waste spent $1.17M or 85% of the budget. Collections were
at $933,000 for the year. Recycling costs dropped, which contributed to the
savings. Maintenance was $558,000 spent, or $81,000 underspent, due to open
positions including an HVAC tech. This was offset by cleaning contract services,
which was overspent by $18,000, due to Covid-related work. Mechanics/Garage
spent $185,000 or 68% of budget, with one open position.

Welfare was $96,000 spent, which was $22,000 overbudget, or 131%
spent. The town, along with local charities, provides help with residents needing
assistance. There was an increased demand for rental assistance in 2021 due to
a shortage of shelters and the end of the moratorium on evictions in summer
2021. The town uses hotel stays when shelters are not available.

Parks and Rec had a spending of $559,000, or 96% of the budget. There
was a $25,000 savings in wages due to challenges with hiring. They made
greater use of contracted services. Supply lines were overbudget by $6,000.

Debt Service increased by $317,000 over 2020. We had the onset of
repayment of the Library project at $417,000, offset by reductions in interest BAN
and year over year interest declines of about $100,000. Capital Outlay was
underspent by $104,000, related to a delay in purchasing two new cruisers for
Police Department, but this amount was encumbered at year end.

Mr. Papakonstantis asked Mr. Dean why we underspent on Human
Services when we overspent on Welfare Assistance. There were organizations
that could have used the funding. Mr. Dean said the actual Human Services
expense was $101,000 or 95% of the budget, but he’s not sure why that's not
100%. Sometimes the organizations don't bill us, perhaps that's the issue. That's
a set amount reviewed by the Human Services Funding Committee. Ms.
Belanger said the Select Board was going to get a report on Welfare and Human
Services, can we put that on the agenda soon? Mr. Dean said yes, we can give a
year to date report at a future meeting.

Mr. Stevens continued with the budget report. There was a Water Fund
net income of $325,000, vs $670,000 in 2020. The 2020 number saw the impact
of appropriations from the warrant of $200,000; that contributed to revenue, but
was not spent. There were no appropriations in 2021 but we're now spending the
2020 appropriations. Water Fund revenues were at $3.93M in 2021, or 97% of
budget; this was a 3% increase over 2020. Water consumption was at 95% of
budget, $103,000 over the 2020 budget. In July 2021, there was an 11.2%
increase in rates. Water Service was $631,000 collected, an increase of $22,000
over 2020. There was an increased fee of $1 per meter implemented in July



2021. Water Misc was up by $22,000 over 2020, due to an insurance
reimbursement. In Water expenses, the Water Administration budget was spent.
Water Billing had $171,000 in spending. It was $11,000 overspent on software
for implementing the Munilink billing software, which was offset by savings in part
time wages and other expenses. Water Treatment was $825,000 spent, or 100%
of budget. Overtime wages were over estimates by $23,000. Consulting and
electricity were over by $15,000. Capital outlay had a $386,000 encumbrance at
year end.

In the Sewer Fund, the net income was $292,000, vs a 2020 net deficit of
$900,000. There was a Sewer rate increase in July 2021 of 19.8%, which raised
revenues by $480,000. Revenues were $6.89M, which was 98% of budget.
Sewer Usage charges were $5.8m or 93% of budget, or $405,000 under
estimate. For Sewer Septage fees, $242,000 was collected; this was a new line
item in 2020. The NH State Aid grant for debt service for the Waste Water
Treatment Plant was on hold in 2021, but will begin in December 2022. Sewer
Expenses were at $6.6M or 94% of budget, $408,000 underspent. Sewer
collections were 75% spent, with $76,000 encumbered at year end. Two
employees left in 2021 and the positions went unfilled. Sewer Treatment was
$1.255M spent, or 94% of budget. There was a reduction in debt service of
$739,000 over 2020 for the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Capital outlay was only
45% spent.

The CATV Revolving Fund operated within budget in 2021, with revenues
higher than budgeted, but still runs at an overall net deficit. This deficit was
$12,000 for 2021. Franchise fees were at $148,000, or 8% over the budget of
$137,000. In Cable Expenses, Wages Taxes and Benefits were $118,000 or 93%
spent. Part time wages were $13,000 underbudget due to a lack of events and
staff. General expenses were at $42,000; these are costs associated with
running the channels. We made one payment to echannel, but typically make two
during the year, so it was underestimate by $10,000. Capital outlay was under
estimate. There was an unassigned fund balance of $140,000 at the end of 2021.

The Recreation Revolving Fund had a net income of $96,000; in 2020, it
had a deficit of $119,000. 2021 was a recovery year for the Rec Dept. It had
$509,000 in revenue. Program revenues were $480,000, or 84% of budget, vs
$95,000 in 2020. Special events were at $78,000 or 92% of the budget; we
brought back the Powderkeg event in 2021. Program revenues were $328,000.
We did not run the swimming program in 2021, so there were no revenues in that
line. Pool program revenues were at $45,000, which was $10,000 over budget.
Mr. Papakonstantis mentioned that summer camp and swim lessons have
resumed this year. Mr. Stevens said on the Recreation expense side, wages
were at $150,000 or 63% of budget. We didn't need as much coverage for
programs as expected. General expenses were $249,000 or 91% of the budget.
Rec programming expenses were $93,000. Software expenses were overbudget
by $11,000; we implemented a new software to assist with participant
registration.



The EMS Revolving Fund had a net income of $178,000, vs $168,000 in
2020. 2021 was a rebound year for EMS; during Covid, calls dropped off and the
revenue stream diminished. On the expense side, wages taxes and benefits
were at $172,000, or 85% of budget. Overtime was underbudget by $22,000, and
health and retirement were under by $10,000.

Ms. Belanger asked about the increase in software in several
departments. Mr. Stevens said there was new software or costs associated with
software implementation. Ms. Belanger said she expects that the BRC process
will examine it more closely. She asked how many vacancies we have now
compared to 2021. Mr. Dean said he’s not sure, but we've had better luck filling
positions in the last few weeks. Some of this budget surplus will be returned
when we set the tax rate.

b. Classification Plan Amendment - Assistant Engineer

Public Works Director Jennifer Perry said Public Works has 8 vacancies
and 2 pending retirements, so the Department is in a tough place. We have been
trying to fill an Assistant Engineer position since last year, with only a half dozen
inquiries and only two serious candidates, and these candidates were concerned
about the wage scale. Exeter is competing with three cities for Assistant
Engineers: Dover is offering $68,000-98,000, Rochester $70,000-92,000, and
Portsmouth $75,000-$91,000. It's clear that we need to increase this position
from a grade 11 to a grade 12 to be more competitive. This is the same industry
as Construction Engineers and Consulting Engineers, and those industries are
also struggling. Without enough people, the work is becoming overwhelming.
Funding opportunities and projects can't be pushed forward. A classification
change would bring this position to $68,700-94,700, which is more in line with our
competition.

Mr. Papakonstantis said this is a chronic problem not just here but
throughout the State. We need to be in a position where we can compete. Folks
leaving for the private sector are getting higher-paying jobs. Shortages lead to
overwork and potential for injuries.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to reclassify the Assistant Engineering Position to a grade 12
with a minimum wage of $68,711, an hourly rate of $33.0340 per hour, with a maximum of
$94,719, an hourly rate of $45.537, effective July 1, 2022. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion
passed 4-0.

c. Website & Social Media Update

Communications Coordinator Bob Glowacky discussed the upcoming
website design update. Regarding the timeline, Jan - Feb was the design
research and feedback phase; he had meetings with staff, the Communications
Committee, and the website provider. In March - May, he did initial drafts and
final designs; in June, he created a best practice document for the website, which
was sent to all staff who work on the website. He’s planning a July 7 launch of
the new website design.



He presented a breakdown of social media accounts associated with the
town: 19 Facebook pages, 6 Twitter accounts, 5 Instagram accounts, 1 YouTube
account, all with a total of 27,801 followers (who may not be unique).

Mr. Papakonstantis asked if the 19 Facebook pages are all town pages.
Mr. Glowacky said yes. Some departments have two or three; there's a Memorial
Day Facebook page; two committees, Energy and Conservation, have their own
pages; and there's one for ThinkBlue Exeter. Ms. Cowan asked about removing
pages, and Mr. Glowacky said there are several options: we can abandon,
unpublish, delete, or merge them.

The current Social Media Policy is from 2013. The Board discussed
updating it in 2019 but tabled the matter. The only major change proposed at that
time was the addition of how to handle committees, commissions and boards that
want to have their own accounts. In these cases, the Select Board would have to
approve, and town staff would be the ones posting, not the committee members
themselves. We've been informally operating this way. That said, we haven't had
new pages since the Energy Committee. Mr. Dean mentioned that Right to Know
issues impact Committees differently from Town staff.

Mr. Glowacky said he thinks we should add the information about
committees to the policy, and use the language “Facebook page or any similar
page” or “social media accounts” to make it apply more broadly. Two to four
committee pages would be affected: the Energy Committee page, which is
posted on by committee members; the Conservation Commission page, which is
posted on by Kristen Murphy; the Exeter Memorial Day Parade page, which
appears defunct; and the Exeter Holiday Parade page. Ms. Gilman said the latter
two are not town committees.

Mr. Glowacky said that the social media policy update doesn't need to
hinder the website launch. The current website already has a list of all social
media accounts. There's nothing new for the new website, except that the new
homepage will show links to the town'’s Facebook page, Twitter account, and
EXTV’s YouTube page.

Mr. Dean said the current social media policy has served us well. We
could add the extra suggestion, but it may be that simpler is better. A sample
policy from NHMA seemed like overkill. We haven't had any social media
problems. Attorneys will say that social media pages should have a sustainable
purpose. We're diligent about leaving comments up unless they're inflammatory
or hate speech.

Mr. Papakonstantis said he thinks we should add the information about
committees. He’s not sure why this was tabled three years ago. He thinks Mr.
Glowacky should go forward with the new website because nothing’s changing
about social media, but the Board would like to see the Communications
Committee and Mr. Glowacky come back with recommendations for the policy.
Mr. Glowacky said he’s already pulled together a lot of information on things such
as Federal requirements. The policy from 2013 is good, other than the
Committee pages question from 2019.



Mr. Papakonstantis recalled that in 2019, this policy amendment came up
because the Sustainability Committee wanted to create a town Facebook page
using the town seal, and the matter was tabled pending the discussion about the
Sustainability Coordinator position.

Mr. Glowacky said he’s working to post more consistently and use
content from the town website. He’'ll research and develop best practices and
social media policy with the Communications Advisory Committee working group.

Mr. Papakonstantis asked if the Board is ok with the July 7 launch and
then having Mr. Glowacky come back with recommendations for the Board, and
they generally agreed. Ms. Cowan said she agrees that the social media policy is
not connected to the new website.

Mr. Glowacky gave examples of his recent work as a Communications
Coordinator. Mr. Papakonstantis asked Mr. Glowacky if he could use a
consultant like the one posting social media updates for Police and Fire. Mr.
Glowacky said he feels he can already handle updates from this building, but
some Departments with a lot of volume may find that helpful. Mr. Dean said we
need to evaluate that, perhaps at a Department Head meeting, to look at what
kind of return on investment we would get and how much of a priority this is.

Ms. Belanger asked about RSA 91-A considerations. Mr. Dean said when
a staff member posts on a Facebook page, they're creating a record; when a
committee member posts, does their post represent a consensus? If multiple
members post, is that a meeting? It gets into the Right to Know Law. Town staff
doesn't have the same limitation.

d. ARPA Funds Request - Mapping/GIS
Technology Directory Andy Swanson said we're using two mapping
systems, Cartographics and Maps Online. Maps Online uses the same data as
Cartographics, but is easier for the public to use. We need to update the data in
Maps Online, but need a way to convert it over. At first we made changes
manually, but there are just too many and they reset each year. People
GIS/Maps Online will fix the database and resolve the reset issue in following
years, at a cost of $4,800, but no Department wants to pay for this. We can use
ARPA funds for this project. Maps Online is currently about 98% accurate, but
there are errors.
Mr. Dean said he recommends we do this. It's a fix with a big ROI.
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to expend up to $4,800 from the ARPA funds to engage with
People GIS/Maps Online in updating the town’s mapping systems. Ms. Cowan seconded. The
motion passed 4-0.

e. ARPA/SRF Grant Acceptances: Webster Ave Pump Station, Squamscott River
Sewer Siphons, Pickpocket Dam, Westside Drive
Assistant Town Manager Melissa Roy said the town qualified for quite a
few grants. This is the process of approving them and giving Mr. Dean the
approval to sign the paperwork.



The Webster Ave motion has an updated figure of $3,255,000, not
$2,929,500, because the State of NH requires that the Governing Body approve
the entire cost of the project. '

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to enter into and approve a loan agreement with the NH
Department of Environmental Services in the amount of $3,255,000 to the Town of Exeter and
to authorize the Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such

. agreement on behalf of the Town for the Webster Ave Pump Station and Forcemain project. Ms.
Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept a State ARPA Grant from the NH Department of
Environmental Services in the amount of $1,395,000 to the Town of Exeter and to authorize the
Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such agreement on
behalf of the Town for the Webster Ave Pump Station and Forcemain project. Ms. Gilman
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

Ms. Roy said regarding the Squamscott River Sewer Siphons, we're
expecting to receive a $180,000 State ARPA Grant and we'll be using $420,000
of local ARPA funds, which is the gap in funding for the final project.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept a State ARPA grant from the NH Department of
Environmental Services in the amount of $180,000 to the Town of Exeter and to authorize the
Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign any paperwork associated with such agreement on
behalf of the Town for the Squamscott River Sewer Siphons Project. Ms. Gilman seconded. The
motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the use of local ARPA funds in the amount of
$420,000 to fund the balance of the Squamscott River Sewer Siphons project cost and to
authorize the Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign any paperwork associated with such
usage on behalf of the Town. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

Ms. Roy said the Pickpocket Dam Reconstruction/Removal project is
$373,385, but $42,000 of that was encumbered previously. We got $100,000
from the State and $40,000 from a Coastal Resiliency Grant. We need to
approve up to $185,000 of local ARPA money.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept a State ARPA grant from the NH Department of
Environmental Services in the amount of $100,000 to the Town of Exeter and to authorize the
Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such agreement on
behalf of the Town for the Pickpocket Dam Reconstruction/Removal project. Ms. Gilman
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept a Coastal Resiliency Grant from the NH Department of
Environmental Services in the amount of $40,000 to the Town of Exeter and to authorize the
Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such agreement on



behalf of the Town for the Pickpocket Dam Reconstruction/Removal project. Ms. Gilman
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the use of local ARPA funds in the amount of
$185,000 to fund the balance of the $373,385 Pickpocket Dam Reconstruction/Removal project
cost and to authorize the Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign any paperwork associated
with such usage on behalf of the Town. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

Ms. Roy said the motion for Westside Drive should be for $231,350, since
the loan forgiveness amount is included in the total cost.
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to enter into and approve a loan agreement with the NH
Department of Environmental Services in the amount of $231,500 to the Town of Exeter and to
authorize the Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such
agreement on behalf of the Town for the Westside Drive Project Design. Ms. Gilman seconded.
The motion passed 4-0. '

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept a State ARPA grant from the NH Department of
Environmental Services in the amount of $99,215 to the Town of Exeter and to authorize the
Town Manager, Mr. Russell Dean, to sign the paperwork associated with such agreement on
behalf of the Town for the Westside Drive Project Design. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion
passed 4-0.

f. Congressional Direct Spending Update

Ms. Roy said for the Congressional Direct Spending of FY 22, we haven't
yet received the funding for our three projects, but we put in an application with
the Department of Justice for body worn cameras and are waiting on Squamscott
River Siphons and the Forcemain at Webster Ave. For FY 23, we applied for one
project with Congressman Pappas and two with Senator Shaheen. Two projects
were picked through Senator Shaheen’s office, new radios for the Police
Department and a new HVAC system and steam boiler at 10 Hampton Road. Ms.
Gilman asked if the Police Chief got a grant for body-worn cameras and the State
also offered money, and Ms. Roy said yes but he called the State and gave the
money back.

g. ADA Report Update

Mr. Dean said we had 2020 funds to do an ADA Evaluation and
Transition Plan, which is needed to meet the Federal requirement.

Mr. Sharples said an ADA Evaluation and Transition Plan is needed for
some grants. We hired a Disability Access Consultant to evaluate public spaces
for ADA compliance and create a plan on how to transition from the situation now
to meeting ADA requirements. The law doesn't require implementation of this
plan. They looked at all town facilities as well as Downtown and Water Street,
and provided us with DakTrak software with the information included. The
Facilities Advisory Committee has looked at how we go about implementing



recommendations, along with Doug Eastman and Jeff Beck. The Facilities
Advisory Committee would like to see some of these projects incorporated into
this year's budget for DPW Maintenance.

Mr. Papakonstantis said he was stunned by the number of
recommendations in the report. It's overwhelming, but it's the right thing to do for
our citizens to take steps forward. He doesn’t want to see anything stall in a
committee, he'd like to see recommendations for the budget from DPW.

Ms. Gilman said a lot of the recommendations are about communication,
so we should share this with the Communications Committee as well.

Mr. Dean said we can establish a capital reserve fund for ADA. Mr.
Papakonstantis said he'd like to hear more about this option.

Mr. Papakonstantis invited public comment.

Amanda Kelly of 24 Prospect Street thanked the Select Board for taking
up this issue. She’s personally invested in this project and she’s looking forward
to seeing it continue.

Ms. Gilman asked if the Town Offices’ front ramp is compliant. Mr.
Sharples said he doesn’t remember seeing it in the report, but he can look into it.

. Parking Issues

Mr. Dean said lately a few issues have arisen related to parking and
traffic. There was a request made, as a result of the approval of the First Baptist
Church condo project on 43 Front Street, for expanding overnight winter parking
spots. The DPW reviewed the request, and determined that there could be
additional spots added: 14 at the Center Street lot and 4 at the Boathouse lot.

Ms. Belanger said right now, there are 79 total winter spaces. There are 2
new projects with 19 new condo units and zero parking. No one seems to have
the numbers on what our current residents use. What are people supposed to do
if they don't have a spot? Would we use permits for overnight parking? Mr. Dean
said the best we can do right now is to give these additional spaces through the
DPW. We don't have data on how many people park overnight, and he’s not sure
how we'd get it without hiring a consultant to sit there at night. We can add up to
18 spots now and talk about different options. The only decal program currently
is with residents of Chestnut Street, which allows them to park on the street
during wintertime. Ms. Belanger said expanding the permitting would give us
answers about the demand.

Mr. Sharples said he believes winter parking needs to be managed.
These developments make sense from a planning perspective. We've had in the
CIP for several years a pedestrian, traffic, and flow analysis for the downtown.
This would look at parking holistically and how to manage it. He [Mr. Sharples]
believes we have enough spaces downtown, we just have to manage it properly.

Ms. Belanger said she's concerned about this winter with 19 new condos.
Mr. Sharples said he doesn’t know when those units are going to be complete.
We'll have to wait for the winter to get the data, but he hasn’t heard of it being an
issue. Mr. Dean added that the town is not towing.

10



Ms. Belanger asked if the Board thought adding 18 spaces is enough.
Ms. Gilman said this winter is a good time for us to see. We could do the
permitting piece and then, if we could get the study passed, we'll already have
the data. Mr. Papakonstantis said the 18 spots is sort of a knee-jerk reaction. We
should get the data. Ms. Belanger said we don't want people to get towed. Mr.
Papakonstantis said it could be a Planning Board work session. Mr. Sharples
said the Chair of the ZBA, Mr. Baum, said he'd be interested in looking at it in
September.

Mr. Dean said his Assistant Pam McElroy manages the permitting
process for Chestnut Street. We give out 12 permits to the first comers, and
maybe one or two people have been denied. He will give more information on
that process at the next meeting.

Mr. Dean said regarding the route request from Buxton Water, the Police
Department had no issue with it. We can consider that to be a local delivery type
of situation. He couldn’t find a reason to say no to them going through Railroad to
Main Street. The Board generally agreed.

Front Street was brought up as an issue by one business owner from Art
on Front Street. The Police Department can get a speed trailer out there and put
up a sign with speed clocking. Some things requested in the business owner's
letter are based on Lincoln Street, but that would be a longer conversation based
on the Master Plan. The cost could be millions of dollars. The Lincoln Street was
$1.8M. The Board would like to discuss this further at the July 18 meeting. Ms.
Belanger agreed that Front Street has issues with speeding and people going
around people taking turns.

9. Regular Business
a. Permits & Approvals
Mr. Sharples requested a Select Board vote to accept the TAP sidewalk
project as required to close out the project with NH DOT. The project is ready to
be closed. The final walkthrough was Oct 21, 2021 and a few minor issues were
noticed, but those items have now been completed. We will receive final
reimbursement when the clgse-out documents are completed. He finds that the
project has been completed in accordance with the agreement. The contractor,
NE Earth Mechanics, and Steven Haas of Hoyle Tanner, the independent
Contract Engineer we hired to oversee the project, have also signed off on the
project.
Mr. Sharples mentioned that the Kingston Road project is also moving
forward. .
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to a=cept the Transportation Alternatives Program sidewalk
project as constructed and authorize the Town Manager to sign the Certificate of Final
Completion of Work on our behalf. Ms. Gilrnan seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

b. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions

11



MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a Timber Tax for 51/17 in the amount of $297.14. Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to deny a tax abatement for 65/113 for the tax year 2021. Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to deny a tax abatement for 70/87 for the tax year 2021. Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0. ’

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to deny a tax abatement for 70/78 for the tax year 2021. Ms.
Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 95/64/214 in the amount of
$865.23 for 2015 and $934.04 for 2016. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/229 in the amount of
$518.45 for 2017; for $498.84 for the tax year 2018; $747.32 for 2019; $786.47 for 2020; and
$776.19 for 2021. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/230 in the amount of
$646.72 for 2018; $823.16 for 2019; $883.89 for 2020; and $854.81 for 2021. Ms. Belanger
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/419 in the amount of
$793.65 for 2020 and $766.06 for 2021. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/421 in the amount of
$699.33 for 2013; $600.47 for 2014; $560.73 for 2015; $592.95 for 2016; $571.29 for 2017;
$570.68 for 2018; $854.82 for 2019; $917.40 for 2020; and $887.79 for 2021. Ms. Belanger
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/513 in the amount of
$782.15 for 2010; $798.22 for 2011; $815.83 for 2012; $858.88 for 2013; $602.51 for 2014;
$426.34 for 2015; $462.65 for 2016; $424.75 for 2017; $420.98 for 2018; $864.47 for 2019;
$912.79 for 2020; and $900.46 for 2021. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved. to épproi/e a tax abatement for 104/79/524 in the amount of
$254.94 for 2016; $418.88 for 2017; $414.98 for 2018; $883.72 for 2019; $933.42 for 2020; and
$920.75 for 2021. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a tax abatement for 104/79/701 in the amount of
$657.49 for 2013; $300.89 for 2014; $289.04 for 2015; $318.99 for 2016; $298.78 for 2017;
$292.25 for 2018; $681.13 for 2019; $719.43 for 2020; and $710.27 for 2021. Ms. Belanger
seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

12



MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a Jeopardy Tax for 104/79/515 in the amount of
$70.83 for the tax year 2022. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to approve a Veteran’s Credit for 70-135 in the amount of $500 for
the tax year 2022. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

Mr. Dean said the Assessing Office made us aware of a case from 1997 where a
mobile home park had taken a writ of possession on a mobile home; the town tried to
take taxes and a court found that that could not happen. These abatements are
instances where a park has taken a writ on these mobile homes and this clears the
decks. There will be seven new mobile homes at the park that will be paying taxes.

Mr. Papakonstantis asked about the mileage recommendation from Finance
Director Stevens. Mr. Dean said it's connected to the Federal recommendation of 62.5
cents. ) '

There was a memo about the donatlon of an antique waterlng trough. Ms. Gilman
asked that it be forwarded to the Herltage Commlsswn

Mr. Dean said we recently got the dog warrant, which we need to approve and
sign. There are 292 dogs/owners on the list.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept the 2022 dog warrant as presented by the Exeter
Town Clerk. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0.

c. Town Manager’'s Report
i.  Town Offices will be closed next Monday for July 4.

ii. He attended an Arbor Day Celebration at Main Street School.

iii.  The Sustainability Committee has a survey about single-use plastics
online.

iv.  CIP meetings are beginning this week.

v.  Regarding Swasey Parkway, our lead Town Counsel has been on
vacation but coming back next week, so the Board should be able to get
an update next week on the status.

vi.  The siphons project is in process. It has not been delayed. They're getting
the permits, easements, and DES approval. There will be a pre-bid
meeting July 20 and a bid openlng and first construction meeting in
August.

vii.  The Webster Ave project is continuing with a preliminary design and
looking at the forcemain easement status.

vii.  Summer camp dnd ten adventure camp started June 21. 180 campers
were enrolled in this session, and 179 for next session. The pool opened
full time on June 21. . .

ix.  Tax Bills are due July 1. The first half tax collections are at 75%.

X.  Mr. Papakonstantis mentioned that he got a call from summer camp that
looked like it was coniing from British Columbia. He called Mr. Bisson,

) \

13



who said the e-system they're using is based out of Canada, so all texts,
emails, and phone calls look like they’re coming from Canada. Mr. Dean
said he will follow up.

d. Select Board Committee Reports

i. Ms. Cowan attended a Communications Advisory meeting, which we
heard about earlier.

ii. Ms. Gilman said the Heritage Commission met to decide how we want to
codify the work that was done on a neighborhood heritage area at Salem
Street, if someone wants to try again in a different location in town.
Regarding the Community Power Coalition, 19 communities have joined.
The Public Utilities Commission is coming out with rules next week.

iii. Ms. Belanger had a Planning Board meeting which was only five minutes
long. We tabled a matter to the next meeting. The Conservation
Commission has an election of officers, which remain the same. Ray
Farmstead was discussed. There was a debrief on the Alewife festival,
which went well. There will be a Geocaching event on July 16.

iv.  Mr. Papakonstantis attended a River Advisory meeting where Town
Engineer Paul Vlasich gave an update on the Pickpocket Dam. This
Committee will not meet again until August or September. The Swasey
Parkway Trustees talked about sidewalk work and the closure of the
parkway for construction. They also looked at aerating part of the lawn vs
the whole lawn. They got a quote for a fence which was damaged in a car
accident. They asked that the Select Board consider putting up more
signage about dogs. Mr. Papakonstantis thanked Eileen Flockhart for the
invitation to the Arbor Day event, but he could not attend. He recognized
the wonderful staff at summer camp.

e. Correspondence
i.  An email from a couple in NY praising the Fire Department for helping a
family member in distress.
ii. A memo from Mr. Sharples regarding 1 Cronin Road. He states that there
is no municipal use for that parcel.
ii. A note weighing in on the Seléct Board discussion about intersections.
10. Review Board Calendar
a. The next meetings are July 18 and 25, August 8 and 22, Tuesday September 6,
and September 19 and 26.
11. Non-Public Session
a. There was no non-public session at this time.
12. Adjournment
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to adjourn. Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 4-0 and
the meeting was adjourned at 10:13 PM.

14



Respectfully Submitted,
Joanna Bartell
Recording Secretary

15






TOWN OF EXETER
CONSERVATION COMMISSION MEMORANDUM

&
v

L

Date: July 11, 2022

To: Exeter Select Board

From: Andrew Koff, Chair, Exeter Conservation Commission
Subject: Move of Kyle Welch to Voting Member Role

On behalf of the Conservation Commission, I request your consideration to move Alternate Member Kyle
Welch into to the Voting Member vacancy with Term to expire 4/2024.

Thank you.

Andrew Koff
Chair, Exeter Conservation Commission



“Sewer Lateral Program




EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH = 03833-4540 « (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov

DATE: July 15, 2022

TO:

Russell Dean, Town Manager

FROM: Paul Vlasich, P.E., Town Engineer

RE:

Salem St Area Utility Project — Private Sewer Service Replacement Program

Please see the accompanying information packet that was presented to the Water & Sewer
Advisory Committee (WSAC) on May 25, 2022.

About a decade ago, the Jady Hill project developed a private service replacement program.
The Jady Hill project had both poor services and a very high degree of Inflow and Infiltration
(I&I). The Salem St Area project has poor sewer services too but not as much of an 1&I
situation.

WSAC has recommended moving forward with a program. The following are some of the
program highlights.

L.
2.
3.

The program will be developed using the documents from the Jady Hill project as a basis.
Only those parcels that connect directly to the newly upgraded sewer mains will be eligible.
PVC sewer laterals will not be eligible unless there is a known problem in the service.
Private forcemains will also not be eligible.

A private drain line service may be considered for problematic sump pump situations if
there is a drain structure available to tie into.

The Town will front all payments to the contractor. The homeowner will be responsible for
the first $1,000 worth of costs. The homeowner can elect to pay their costs back to the town
with $100 yearly payments at 0% interest.

The contractor cost of this work is estimated to be $99,418. This cost can be absorbed within

the

sewer fund portion of the project budget.



Salem St Area Utility Project

Consideration for a Private Sewer Service Replacement and
Sump Pump Lateral Program

During the project design an attempt was made to inspect the sewer services by Closed Circuit Television
{CCTV). The majority of the sewer services on private property were found to be in poor condition. The
Vitrified Clay Pipe (VCP)} and Asbestos Cement (AC) services had offset joints, pipe cracks and root
Intrusions. The Cast Iron (Cl) services exhibited considerable tuberculation. Some service material types
could not be observed because the CCTV couldn’t make it to the property line because of pipe conditions or
obstructions.

Fifteen sump pumps have been reported by the homeowners. Eight discharge onto the lawn, three into
the sewer service and four reported that the discharge location was unknown.

Not all sewer mains are going to be replaced in the project area. Where the sewer mains are scheduled to
be replaced, the sewer services will be reconstructed from the main to the property line.

Parcels in sewermain replacement areas: 62
Parcels with private sewer service material PVC or forcemain:  (11)
Rerouted sewer therefore Town responsibility {2)
Parcels added because of sump pump lateral 3
Total parcels potentially in program 52
The potential replacement private sewer service pipe types: VCP -28
AC - 6
Cl -5

Unknown -10

Using the Jady Hill project as an outline for a private property service replacement program the following
are some of the program highlights. Jady Hill documents are attached at the end of this write-up.

1. The town paid 100% of the sewer service replacements in the right-of-way.

2. Where possible the town constructed drain laterals to the parcels. (This is not planned for the
Salem St project unless the homeowner has a problematic sump pump outfall.})

3. For service work on private property the homeowner was responsible for the first $1,000. The
town paid the remaining. This was the combined costs of the sewer service and potential drain line
service. Services were brought to within 5-feet of the house foundation. The town fronted all
payments to the contractor. The homeowner could pay up front or pay back the town $100
annually for up to 10 years at 0% interest. If the homeowner elected to pay annually, a lien
agreement was executed.

4, The resident signed an agreement to opt in or opt out of the program. The agreement recognized
that the homeowner is responsible for compliance with the sewer ordinance if they opt out of the
program. If the homeowner opted into the program and paid upfront then the agreement sufficed
for a temporary construction easement.



5. The Lien Agreement memorialized the service costs and repayment conditions. The document also
allowed the contractor to enter the property for the work.

6. A plumber certification was required once the homeowner removed all forms of 1&I from the sewer
system. Costs for plumbing permits were waived. The Building Inspector signed off after
inspections if a licensed plumber was not utilized.

Using the same Jady Hill service replacement program as a template, the following costs were computed
using the current contractor’s pricing of $95/LF for sewer/drain private service replacement cost along with
the $1,000 maximum homeowner contributions. The table assumes 100% homeowner participation. Asa
comparison the Jady Hill project had 75% participation with a service unit cost of $50/LF. Parcels with PVC
sewer services or pressure systems were excluded from this proposed program. A total of approximately
995 LF of sewer services and 52 LF of drain line services on private property were estimated.

Total Program Costs: $99,418
Homeowner Responsibility: $48,318
Town Costs: $51,100

Alternative maximum homeowner contributions of $1,500 and $2,000 were calculated for consideration.

Service Cost Max. H.O. Home # Parcels
Total Program Contribution Owner Town Town
S95/LF 51,000 S 48,318 $51,100 42

Total = $99,418 51,500 S 67,998 | $31,421 32
52,000 $ 81,325 | $18,093 20




SEwWER SERNICE
@ Vev
O Al
@ ¢t

‘n

N s, S

SEWER Ma1ad

T \WATEZ MR

s DRAN (N

SUMP Pump  PIseHArRLE

@ V¢ or PreFHues
@ mown RESPONSIBLE

@ unwrownd

~ SUMMER S

LEGEND

[l




84 Exeter Rd.

South Hampton, NH
03827

April 29, 2022

Mr. Paul Vlasich
Town Engineer
Town of Exeter, NH
13 Newtields Rd.
Exeter, NH 03833

Mr. Vlasich,

Per our conversations regarding sewer services beyond the town right of way (private property).
Jamco is please to offer the price of ninety-five dollars and zero cents (395.00) per linear foot to
furnish and install sewer services for the residents of the Salem Street Area Improvement
Project, that we currently are constructing.

Jamco Excavators will furnish and install the services, back fill with native materials aside from
stone bedding. We will loam and seed the disturbed area. Maintenance of this disturbed area is
the responsibility of the homeowner. Jamco is not liable for grass growth or washouts due to
heavy downpours etc. after the work has been completed.

[f there are occurrences where sewer laterals run under garden beds, trees, existing structures,
fences, paved driveways, or patios etc. will be handled above and beyond this linear foot price.

Road Construction-Site Work-Sewer Water Main Storm Drain [nstallauon-Underground Utility-Paving
Environmentally Sensitive & Experienced



Proposed Jady Hill Area Service Work
Cost Sharing Alternative

Homeowner Responsibility Per Current Town Regulations

Property Line

Storm Drain

Sewer Main

l.’
1
i€ 1€ —

Homeowner pays for:
Service connection
Internal plumbing

Plumbing certification

Estimated cost = $500

Homeowner pays $1,000 Town to pay 100% -
maximum on property. :
Town to pay for remaining work.

Maximum homeowner
contribution estimated at $1500

In exchange for accepting the Town's proposal to limit out-of-pocket expenses, the Town will require:
a) Use of Town contractor for Service Line work to ensure timing and construction quality control.

b) A temporary construction easement granted by the Home-owner to the Town/its contractor.

¢) Home-owner agrees to hire a licensed plumber to complete and certify all work necessary from
within 5 feet of foundation to connect to new Sewer and Relief Drain Service Lines as applicable. Work
should include disconnection of sump pumps, if applicable.




TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

RESIDENT AGREEMENT

This agreement is to indicate whether or not each resident is interested in participating
in the town of Exeter private sewer and storm drain relief service installation program.

PLEASE MARK THE APPROPRIATE BOX THEN SIGN AND DATE

O I choose to participate in the Exeter private sewer and storm drain relief service
installation program. I understand that this will obligate me to a repayment of
$ for the installation cost. The repayment can be completed by
lump sum or via a lien agreement with the town of Exeter. In the absence of a lien
agreement, this resident agreement will serve to grant a temporary construction easement
to complete the work on my property in accordance with the plans and specifications
entitled "Jady Hill Utility Replacement Project Phase I" dated September 2011 and "Jady
Hill Utility Replacement Project Phase II" dated June 2012. I understand that it is my
responsibility to remove all sources of groundwater infiltration and stormwater inflow
from the sewer service as required by the Exeter Sewer Use ordinance.

DO I choose not to participate in the Excter private sewer and storm drain relief service
installation program. I understand that I am forfeiting my opportunity to have my sewer
service replaced and to have a storm drain relief service installed on my private property.
It is also my understanding that the town of Exeter will replace the sewer service and
install a storm drain relief to the edge of the right-of-way / property line and it will be my
responsibility to be in compliance with the town of Exeter Sewer Use Ordinance.

Printed Name Date

Signature Street Address



LIEN AGREEMENT

- WHEREAS (“the Owner”) is the owner of property
located at Exeter, New Hampshire (“the Property”) with a mailing address
of ; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Exeter (“the Town"), is a municipal corporation with a
mailing address of 10 Front Street, Exeter, New Hampshire 03833; and

WHEREAS, the Town proposes to replace the sewer service pipe and install the
storm drain relief pipe which is located on the Property and which connects the Property
to the Town's sewer main and storm drain main (“the Pipes”) respectively despite the
fact that maintenance of the Pipes is generally the responsibility of the Owner; and

WHEREAS, the Town has obtained funding for the replacement and installation
of the Pipes such that the Owner will be responsible for $X, XXX of the cost of replacing
and maintaining the Pipes, with the Town paying any remaining cost;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The Town may enter onto the Property to install, remove, replace, and
upgrade the existing Pipes. The Town'’s authority to enter the Property shall expire one
(1) year following the substantial completion date of the Jady Hill Utility Replacement
Project. Following the replacement and installation of the Pipes, the Town shall restore
the Property to as close to its original condition as is reasonably practicable and in
accordance to the Plans and Specifications entitled "Jady Hill Utility Replacement
Project Phase |" dated September 2011 and "Jady Hill Utility Replacement Project
Phase II" dated June 2012,

2. The Owner shall be responsible for payment of the $X. XXX cost over a period
of ten years. The $100 due each year shall be invoiced as a separate sewer bill on or
about the Spring of each year. Failure of the Owner to make any annual payment shall
result in the Town exercising any and all of its rights to collect payment, including right
to commit the bill to the tax collector for placement of a lien on the Property. The Owner
may at any time prepay the outstanding amount without penalty at which time the Town



shall cause a release of this Agreement to be recorded in the Rockingham County
Registry of Deeds.

3. The obligation to make the payments referenced in Paragraph 2 shall run with
the land and be binding on all present and subsequent owners.

4, This Agreement shall be recorded in the Rockingham Cotnty Registry of
Deeds.

OWNER
Date:

(Print Name)
Date:

(Print Name)
TOWN OF EXETER
Date:

Russell Dean, Town Manager
Duly Authorized



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PLUMBER CERTIFICATION CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used by a licensed plumber to certify that all work is completed in
accordance with the Town of Exeter, Public Works Department requirements for the
private sewer and storm drain relief services for the Jady Hill Utility Replacement
Project - Phase Il.

SEWER AND STORM DRAIN RELIEF SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

D If applicable, obtain a Town of Exeter Plumbing Permit from the Exeter Building Department and

coordinate inspection by the Exeter Code Enforcement Officer / Building Inspector. All
associated permit fees will be waived.

Ensure the existing 4-inch diameter sewer service is free from any cracks, leaks or disrepair
within 5-linear feet from foundation. If necessary, replace the 4-inch diameter sewer service with
a 4-inch diameter PVC sewer service, within 5-linear feet from the foundation.

Ensure the newly installed 4-inch diameter PVC sewer service from the sewer main is properly
connected to the 4-inch diameter sewer service that is 5-linear feet from the foundation, Be sure
to use appropriate couplings and fittings as necessary.

Ensure that any connections to the newly installed 4-inch diameter PVC storm drain relief service
from the storm drain, that is 5-linear feet from the foundation, is properly connected. Be sure to
use appropriate couplings and fittings as necessary.

Ensure all sump pumps, foundation footing drains, floor drains, roof leaders, yard drains or any
other similar connection carrying rainwater, drainage or ground water are disconnected from the
4-inch diameter sewer service and directed to the 4-inch diameter storm drain relief service
provided or otherwise acceptable as permanent disconnection, per the Town of Exeter Sewer Use
Ordinance.

If a Plumbing Permit is required then a New Hampshire Master Plumbing License is required to
perform all internal plumbing work. Removal of a sump pump does not necessarily require a
plumbing permit.

If no internal plumbing is necessary, the Exeter Code Enforcement Officer or Building Inspector
will perform the inspection and no permits will be necessary.

Name NH Master Plumber License #

Signature Company Name

Resident Street Address



Sidewalk Construction Funding Request, Demolition of 149 Kingston Road Garage



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH » 03833-4540 = (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov

DATE: 7/14/2022
TO: Russell Dean, Town Manager

FROM: Jay Perkins, Highway Superintendent
Jennifer Perry, Public Works Director

RE; Sidewalk Funding Requests

In order to affect needed repairs to sidewalks adjacent to roadways in the 2022 paving plan, the
Sidewalk Capital Reserve Fund (remaining balance $145,370), the 2017 Special Highway
Block Grant (remaining balance $49,066) and 2022 budget line items for paving ($800,000) and
sidewalk repairs ($15,000) will need to be expended.

Linden Street (from Little River Bridge to Exeter River Bridge)

Linden Street should be reconstructed to include new vertical granite curb and asphalt sidewalks
due to poor condition and significant pedestrian volume. The road reconstruction and paving is
estimated to cost $391,340. The curbing and sidewalk reconstruction estimate is $296,435. We
request the Select Board authorize using fund balance from both the Sidewalk Capital Reserve
Fund and the 2017 Special Highway Block Grant, in addition to 2022 sidewalk and paving
budget line items, to pay for the Linden Street sidewalk.

Sidewalk Capital Reserve Fund $145,370
2017 Special Highway Block Grant 549,066
2022 Sidewalk Repair budget line item $15,000
2022 Paving budget line item $86,999
Linden Street Sidewalk Sub-Total $296,435
Linden Street Roadway Reconstruction & Paving  $391,340
Linden Street Total $687,775

Colonial Way & Heritage Way

We recommend these streets be milled, add new asphalt berm curbing and repave both streets
and sidewalks. The sidewalk estimate is $52,000 and we request it come from the paving budget
as well. The total project cost estimate is $318,525.

Colonial/Heritage Sidewalk Sub-Total $52,000
Colonial/Heritage Roadway Sub-Total $266,525
Colonial/Heritage Total $318,525

Suggested Motion: To authorize use of the balance of the Sidewalk Capital Reserve Fund up to
the amount of 145,370 and the balance of the 2017 Special Highway Block Grant in the
amount of $49,066 toward reconstruction of sidewalks on Linden Street.



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH +« 03833-4540 « (603) 773-6157 *FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exelernh.cov

DATE: July 14, 2022
TO: Russell Dean, Town Manager

FROM: Jennifer R. Perry, P.E., Public Works Director
Jeff Beck, Maintenance Superintendent

RE: 149 Kingston Road, Single-Vehicle Garage Demolition Request

The Town of Exeter owns property at 149 Kingston Road, the former Chet Simpson residence.
There is a small single-vehicle garage located 90 feet west of the residence, adjacent to the
entrance to the pit off Kingston Road. The garage is in poor condition and has become a safety
concern. It is not worth the effort or cost to repair it and has no salvage value. We recommend
demolition and removal of the garage. This work can be completed by Public Works crews.




Page 2 of 2
July 14, 2022




Drought Update



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH ¢ 03833-4540 = (603) 773-6157 FAX (603) 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov

DATE: July 14, 2022
TO: Russell Dean, Town Manager
Exeter Select Board
FROM: Jennifer R. Perry, P.E., Public Works Director
RE: Water Resources Status Update & Recommended Water Use Restrictions

New Hampshire Drought Conditions

The U.S. Drought Monitor dated July 12, 2022, indicates 100% of the State of New Hampshire is in
moderate (D1) or severe drought (D2) condition. The Town of Exeter and the upper reaches of the
Exeter River watershed are in moderate drought and have been since July 5, 2022.

U.S. Drought Monitor July 12, 2022
New Hampshire (Fleasod Thursday, Jl. 14, 202

Drought Conditions (Percem Area)
Yone | D0-D4 | D1-D4 :

Cumeat 000 |®0.00(10000| 341 | 000 | QOO

Last Weak
01082003

151 | 8840 [56.96 | 000 | Q.00 | Q00

3MonthsAQo | ;47| 4981 | 0co | 0w | 6o | 0co
O 12-7002

Start of

Calendar Your | &7.79 | 1221 | 325 | GO0 | OO0 | OO0
0104 3003

Start of
Vilater Yeor 783|107 | 320 | 048 | 000 | Q0O
o332 000

One YearAgo | 3905 (G002 (2058 | 3%2 | 000 | 000
ar-ra2mr

intensity”

[ |MNone [ 02 Severe Drought

[ 100 snoematyDry [l D3 Extrame Draught

[ 1 D1 Modersts Drought [ 04 Exce pianal Dreught

The Drought Mondor focusas on Oroad-scale conalions
Local condions may vary For more information on ife
Drought onlior, 9o 10 htips Faroughtmoniion Ll e ADout S0

Author
Brian Fuchs
National Drought Mbgation Center

USDA /%
- NS

droughtmonitor.unl.edu

The U.S. Drought Monitor is jointly produced by National Drought Mitigation Center at University of Nebraska-Lincoln, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, and National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. Map courtesy of NDMC.
https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/CurrentMap/StateDroughtMonitor.aspx?NH




Page 2 of 5
Water Resources Status Update
July 14, 2022

River Flow

The USGS stream flow gauge on the Exeter River at Haigh Road in Brentwood (drainage area 63.5
square miles) indicates current instantaneous discharge is 7 cubic feet per second (cfs) (at 15:15 on
7/13/2022) which is below the median. The water supply intake for the Town of Exeter is located
several miles downstream of the gauging station, with a contributing watershed of 107 square miles.
The flow rates at the intake location are estimated to be 1.69 times higher than at Haigh Road, or
approximately 12 cfs (7.7 MGD).

The instantaneous Exeter River flow rate is low for this time of year.

= USGS
USGS 01073587 EXETER RIVER AT HAIGH ROAD, NEAR BRENTWOOD, NH

400.0
360.8

260.0 %h h [ JV\F“ \m' \/\\/\/\

=
@
@
[~}

-

Discharge, cubic feet per second

18.8

3.0
Jan 81 Feb 81 Har 81 Apr 81 Hay 81 Jun 61 Jul 81
2822 2822 2022 2922 2022 2822 20822

- Hedian daily statistic {25 years) = Period of approved data
— Discharge === Period of provisional data
— Estinated discharge

https://waterdata.usgs.gov/usa/nwis/uv?01073587

Groundwater Levels

During the month of June, long-term monitoring wells in the southeastern region of the state
indicated decreasing groundwater levels. Groundwater levels in bedrock wells in Hooksett and
Northwood were low (<10™ percentile), two bedrock wells in East Kingston were below normal (10"
to 25™ percentile) and bedrock and overburden wells in Deerfield and an overburden well in Epping
were normal (see https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt34 1/files/documents/nhgs-gwlevels-jun2022.pdf)

Current groundwater levels in the region are decreasing, and range from low to normal.



Page 3 of 5
Water Resources Status Update
July 14, 2022

Precipitation

Total precipitation received since January 1 through July 13 is 18.5 inches. This is a rainfall deficit of
5.59 inches below the average of 24.09 inches for this time of year (Source: National Weather Service
NOWData for Epping, NH). Total annual precipitation averages 46.95 inches for this site (57 years of
record).

Precipitation is below average with a 5.59 inch precipitation deficit for the year.

Accumulated Precipitation - EPPING, NH

Click and drag to zoom to a shorter time interval, green/black diamonds represent

subseqguent/missing values

40.-

30-

20

Precipitation (inches)

10

4]
Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 Jul 1

I @ 2022 accumulation -— Normal — Highest (2006) = Lowest (1985) [

NOAA/National Weather Service, Gray/Portland Office. NOWData for Epping, NH.



Page 4 of 5

Water Resources Status Update
July 14, 2022

Drought Outlook

July and the 3 month outlook (July, August, September) temperatures are predicted to continue to be
above normal. July precipitation is predicted to be equal chance for above, normal or below and the

3 month precipitation outlook (July, August, September) is predicted to be slightly above normal
precipitation.

(& Monthly Temperature Outiook K7 (#  Monthly Precipitation Outlook &

Prasabilty (Percass Crancs]
e e

» o~
¢ oweey ¢ HIN mas s B Ueewg
1 Addve R wao s [ - e
SR e SN e
DL
£ el — D — I Y
_4,.\-/ ‘--u\ por——1 ‘

i - s .

w” Seasonal Temperature Outliook & w Seasonal Precrpltatlon Outiook N7

Valld: Jmm

} Brn hlund e, mz

l
\ >

D —

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions/multi_season/13 seasonal outlooks/color/churchill.php
s://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions/multi_season/13 seasonal outlooks/color/page2.gif




Page 5 of 5
Water Resources Status Update
July 14, 2022

Exeter Water Supply

Water usage or demand in the Exeter public water system reflect summer, irrigated flows. The seven
day average on July 13 was 1.36 MGD. To date in 2022 the surface water treatment plant (SWTP)
produced 125 MG, supplying 65% of demand. The groundwater treatment plant (GWTP) produced
66 MG, supplying 35% of demand.

Exeter Water
2022 Supply Trend with 7-Day Rolling Average
Gallons per Day

1,600,000 ‘

1,400,000

; ! I
1,200,000 :L L

1,000,000

800,000
I Treated Water

600,000

=i=Rolling 7-Day Avg

400,000

200,00 |;'.u=? il A |
_ LA O i

0
)%
v
Q
N
'\Y'

Summary

Exeter and the upper reaches of the Exeter River watershed are in moderate drought. Temperatures
have been above average and are predicted to continue to be above normal through September.
Precipitation has been below average and there is a 5.59 inch precipitation deficit for the year.
Surface water flows are low and estimated to be 12 cfs (7.7 MGD) at the Exeter River intake.
Groundwater levels are decreasing and range from low to normal. Exeter water usage reflects summer
irrigated demands with the most recent 7 day average of 1.36 MGD.

Recommendations

We recommend implementing Level 2 outdoor water use restrictions which allow landscape watering
every other day (even/odd watering) and do not restrict other outdoor water uses. Water users are
always encouraged to practice effective water conservation. For helpful tips on water use and
conservation go to https://www.epa.gov/watersense.




Community Power Aggregation Committee Plan Amendments



EXETER
COMMUNITY POWER PROGRAM

EXETER ELECTRIC AGGREGATION PLAN

December 29, 2021
As Approved by the Exeter voters at Town Meeting on February 5, 2022.

With Draft Amendments 6/27/22 [Amended on [INSERT DATE]]

\ N
il
OUrCe delivery customer
CP UNITIL YOU
Buying on behalf of Existing utility continues to Affordable rates, options
Exeter from tradibonal deliver electncity using the for clearer energy

and green sources same power lines and billing mixes, resilience




Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION
2. EXETER COMMUNITY POWER: PURPOSE, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
3. IMPLEMENTING COMMUNITY POWER IN EXETER

A REQUIREMENTS PER RSA 53-E

B. PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

o

PARAMETERS OF IMPLEMENTATION

4. PROGRAM ORGANIZATION AND ADMINISTRATION
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

ADMINISTRATION

METHODS FOR ENTERING INTO AND TERMINATING AGREEMENTS

© 0 ® »

TERMINATION OF THE COMMUNITY POWER PROGRAM
5. CUSTOMER PARTICIPATION

NOTIFICATION AND ENROLLMENT

NEW CUSTOMERS

OPTING-OUT OF EXETER COMMUNITY POWER

RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS

m o o o »

CUSTOMER DATA PRIVACY

m

ELECTRIC ASSISTANCE PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY
G.  UNIVERSAL ACCESS, RELIABILITY AND EQUITABLE TREATMENT FOR CUSTOMERS
H.  EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
6. OPERATION AND FUNDING
A.  OPERATIONS
B.  COSTS, FUNDING AND RATE SETTING
7. PLANNED PRODUCT OPTIONS FOR ELECTRICITY SUPPLY
A.  GENERAL APPROACH
B.  PLANNED INITIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY OPTIONS
C.  RENEWABLE PORTFOLIO STANDARD REQUIREMENTS
8. INVENTORY OF CUSTOMER ELECTRIC DEMAND IN EXETER
9. RELATIONSHIP WITH COMMUNITY POWER COALITION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (CPCNH)
10. NET METERING COMPENSATION
1. PUBLIC INPUT PROCESS

~N o &M

-~

9
10
10
12
12
12
13
13
14
14
14
14
15
15
15
17
17
18
19
19
19
20
20
21
22
23

Final - 12/29/2021 2 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

12 AMENDING THE ELECTRIC AGGREGATION PLAN

13. APPENDICIES

APPENDIX 1: COMMUNITY POWER ENABLING STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS
APPENDIX 2: PUBLIC INFORMATION MATERIALS

APPENDIX 3: COMMUNITY POWER SURVEY

APPENDIX 4: EXETER COMMUNITY POWER QUESTION AND ANSWERS SCRIPT
APPENDIX 5: PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

APPENDIX 6: OVERVIEW OF COMMUNITY POWER COALITION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COALITION GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
COALITION MEMBER BENEFITS

A. COALITION MEMBER SERVICES

B. COALITION PUBLIC ADVOCACY
COALITION COST SHARING STRUCTURE & CONTRACTING PROCESS
COALITION ENERGY RISK MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RESERVES POLICIES
COALITION DESIGN & START UP PROCESS TO-DATE

A. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT DRAFTING PROCESS
B. COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS

C.  INCORPORATION, ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT & REQUEST FOR SERVICES PROCESS
APPENDIX 7: AVAILABLE UTILITY DATA

APPENDIX 8: HOW LOAD SERVING ENTITY SERVICES WILL BE IMPLEMENTED
THE ROLE & RESPONSIBILITY OF LOAD SERVING ENTITIES
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMUNITY POWER COALITION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (CPCNH)
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN OF EXETER

APPENDIX 9: CUSTOMER DATA PROTECTION PLAN
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMUNITY POWER COALITION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (CPCNH)
CPCNH REQUIREMENTS TO ACCESS AND USE OF INDIVIDUAL CUSTOMER DATA
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN OF EXETER
ADDITIONAL REFERENCES: STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMUNITY POWER AGGREGATORS & SERVICE PROVIDERS
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO BROKERS & COMPETITIVE SUPPLIERS
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE MULTI-USE ENERGY DATA PLATFORM

23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
30
31

32

32
33
35
36

36
37

37
38

39
39
40
43

45
45
47
49
50
50
51
53



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

1. Introduction

As described in this document, the Town of Exeter is developing a Community Power Aggregation Program to
provide expanded choice for electric power supply and services for residential and commercial electric
customers within the community. This document represents the Energy Aggregation Plan for the Town of
Exeter as prescribed by RSA 53:E:6. The Plan has been prepared by the Exeter Community Power Aggregation
Committee which was established by the Select Board in May 2021. It describes the purpose of the program,
how it will be organized, implemented and operated. It is subject to approval by the Exeter Community Power
Aggregation Committee and submission by the Select Board to Town Meeting for adoption by a majority of
those present and voting.

What is Community Power Aggregation?

Community Power Aggregation (CPA) refers to the grouping of retail electric customers within a municipality
or group of municipalities to provide, broker or contract for electric power supply and related services for
those customers. Communities typically implement CPA programs for the sake of cost savings, environmental
sustainability, sourcing electricity from local energy sources or some combination of these. With aggregation,
Exeter has the potential to offer a wider choice of energy supply options and innovative services to its
residents and business, including choices that include a larger proportion of renewable energy.

Community power aggregation programs only change the sources of electricity used to supply the community,
and do NOT change how electricity is delivered over the transmission or distribution grid. In Exeter’s case,
Unitil will remain the utility that is responsible for maintaining the distribution grid and delivering electricity
purchased by the program to participating customers-. The difference is that the source of the electricity will
be chosen by the CPA rather than by Unitil’s default energy provider. Customers will have the option to not
participate in Exeter’s program and continue meeting their electricity needs either through Unitil's default
electricity supplier or through a third-party competitive supplier. At the present time we estimate that

between 8-10% of residential electricity customers and nearly 40% of commercial and industrial customers in
Unitil’s service area already choose to purchase their electricity supply through a third party and do not use
the utility default supply. The adoption of an Exeter CPA will have no effect on those customers, other than
providing them with the option to request to “opt-in” to the program. Details about how customers would
participate in Exeter community Power are found in Section 5 of this document.

Why Now?

Community Power Aggregation is not new to New Hampshire and has in fact been allowed since 1996 when
RSA 53-E and other statutes associated with electric utility restructuring were enacted. While allowed since
then, community power programs have not been used successfully in New Hampshire because of impediments
that existed in how the aggregation could be implemented. Those impediments made it difficult to reach the
critical mass of customers necessary to establish competitive electric supply contracts. In 2019, changes were
made to RSA 53-E that allowed programs to be established under an “opt-out” basis, meaning the community
power program can now be set as the default energy source for customers currently receiving the Unitil
default energy service unless they choose otherwise. Since this change numerous communities in New

Final - 12/29/2021 4 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Hampshire, like Exeter, have started to work on developing community power and a statewide coalition of
municipalities has formed to facilitate this development (the “Community Power Coalition of New
Hampshire”). Responding to this new opportunity, and upon recommendation from the Exeter Energy
Committee, the Select Board charged the Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee with evaluating
the advisability of, and preparing a plan for, implementing community power in Exeter.

Approval Process for Exeter’s Community Power Aggregation Plan

This Electric Aggregation Plan was developed by the Electric Aggregation Committee with due input from the
public, as required under RSA 53-E. Public hearings were held on November 29th and December 13th, 2021.
(See Appendix for Public Hearing Notice.)

The Electric Aggregation Committee has determined that this Plan satisfies applicable statutory requirements
and is in the best, long-term interest of the Town and its residents, businesses, and other ratepayers.

Adoption of this Plan, which is subject to approval by a majority of those present and voting at Town Meeting,
will establish Exeter Community Power as an approved electric aggregation program with statutory authorities
defined under RSA 53-E:3, to be exercised with due oversight and local governance, as described herein, and
will authorize the Exeter Select Board to arrange to procure the necessary professional services and power
supplies to implement Exeter Community Power.

Implementation Steps

If this Plan is adopted at Town Meeting, the Select Board and Committee will begin work on implementing the

program. This will involve a number of steps, including:

* Submitting the Plan for approval by the Public Utilities Commission, and to Unitil and the Office of the
Public Advocate on the same day-;

* Jointly soliciting and contracting for third-party services, electricity supply and staff support to launch and
operate the Community Power programs through the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire
(CPCNH), or, seeking proposals and contracting for the necessary services, staff support and energy supply
sources independently; and

* Developing and publicizing community power program details for customers, including supply alternatives,
rate offerings and opt-out procedures.

As the program develops three things will remain constant:- (1) Unitil will continue to be our utility, meaning
they will continue to deliver electricity to customers, own and operate the distribution system (poles, wires,
transformers, substations, etc.) and in most cases, provide account and billing services. (2) Participating in the
Exeter Community Power will be completely voluntary. After the electricity rates to be offered under the
program are established, customers will be notified and may choose to opt-out of the program, staying with
Unitil’s default energy service. (3) Any costs associated with operating the program will be incorporated into
rates paid by Exeter Community Power customers only and will not be passed on to customers who choose to
opt-out of the program. If it is determined before the program is launched that Exeter Community Power will
be unable to offer default electric rates that are initially lower than or competitive with the fixed energy
service charge rates offered by Unitil for residential and general service customers (rate schedules D and GS-2),



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

then implementation of the program will not move forward. The program will not launch unless and until
those conditions change.

2. Exeter Community Power: Purpose, Goals and Objectives

For at least the last 10 years, the Town of Exeter has contracted for its municipal energy supply through a
municipal energy broker, achieving more stable and often lower rates and access to a broader choice of energy
sources and suppliers. For example, with the Town’s most recent contract with energy supplier ENGIE LLC,
signed in May 2021, the Town will be paying 7.45 -cents/kWh whereas as of December 2021 the utility default
energy service rate for small to medium non-residential customers has increased from 6 cents/kWh to -15.4
cents/kWh and the residential rate has increased from 7.1 cents/kWh to 17.52 cents/kWh for the next six
months due to a spike in energy supply costs. Under Community Power, the same opportunity to seek out
more advantageous energy supply contracts can be extended to the entire customer base of the Town.

The purpose of the Community Power Aggregation in Exeter is to allow the Town to aggregate retail electric
customers to provide more competitive access to competitive supplies of electricity and related services. The
intended result will be to offer more customers greater choice to select energy sources, especially renewable
sources, at more competitive rates than currently available.

The primary goals of the program are as follows:

¢ Expand and accelerate the use of renewable electric energy in Exeter by making such sources more
accessible and affordable to all electric energy customers;

* Facilitate the development of and access to local renewable energy projects; and

¢ Facilitate the development of innovative energy services and programs available to residents and
businesses including smart meters, distributed storage and energy efficiency programs, EV charging, and
training and education programs.

These goals are supported by the following objectives:

¢ Choice and Access. Expanded choice and access to energy suppliers: Most customers presently do not
take advantage of the existing option to choose among energy suppliers. The Exeter Community Power
Aggregation program will create readily accessible options for customers to choose from at competitive
rates;

¢ Regional and Statewide Collaboration. Collaborate with other municipalities regionally and statewide to
expand the aggregation market, share services and expertise, and develop priority projects;

* Affordable Renewable Energy. Through access to larger aggregation markets, improve affordability of
renewable energy supply options;

¢ Partnership with Unitil. Create a strong collaborative partnership with Until in developing and delivering
innovative programs and services;

Final - 12/29/2021 6 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

* Fiscal Stability. Ensure fiscal stability through robust energy supply risk management and by establishing
strong financial reserves funded through program revenues.

* Energy Resilience: Over time, Exeter Community Power will support the development of innovative local
energy projects to improve resiliency in power supply. These may include residential battery / back-up
power projects, independent electric vehicle charging networks and community microgrids at critical

facilities; and

¢ Prioritize Clean Energy. Exeter Community Power will prioritize the development of cost-effective

projects that promote the use and development of renewable energy, including:

Partnering with businesses and towns in the region to develop renewable energy projects, storage
facilities, EV charging stations networks, etc.

Support individual residential and business customers in adopting new clean energy technologies and
reducing energy consumption.

3. Implementing Community Power in Exeter

The basic process for implementing Community Power Aggregation in New Hampshire is established under

RSA 53-

E, titled Aggregation of Electric Customers by Municipalities and Counties. The law outlines both the

steps that are used to establish a community power program in New Hampshire, and the minimum standards

that such programs must meet.

A. Requirements per RSA 53-E

At a minimum, the following steps are cited in the statute:

1. The governing body (Select Board in Exeter) may form an electric aggregation committee.

2. The aggregation committee drafts a community power aggregation plan, which must:

2.1,

2.2,

2.3.

Provide for universal access, reliability, and equitable treatment of all classes of customers subject to
any differences arising from varying opportunities, tariffs, and arrangements between different
electric distribution utilities in their respective franchise territories;

Meet, at a minimum, the basic environmental and service standards established by the Public Utilities
Commission and other applicable agencies and laws and rules concerning the provision of service
under Community Power; and

Detail the following elements: organizational structure; operations and funding; rate setting and
other costs; whether program established as op-in or opt-out; method for entering and terminating
agreements; rights and responsibilities of program participants; how customer net-metering is
accounted and compensated; how eligible CPA customers may receive discounted services; how the
program may be terminated.

Final - 12/29/2021 7 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

3. As part of the planning process the aggregation committee must solicit public input and hold public
hearings.

4. The aggregation committee must determine that the plan is in the best long-term interest of the
municipality and its ratepayers.

5. The Select Board may choose to submit the final community power aggregation plan to Town Meeting for
adoption.

6. Once adopted, if the Plan calls for the ‘opt-out’ of the program alternative default service, the municipality
must mail written notification to all affected utility customers including description of the program,
implication and their rights and responsibilities as participants. The notification must be made at least 30
days before the program begins.

7. A public information meeting must be held to explain the program and answer questions (held within 15
days of above notification).

8. Customers must be afforded the right to opt-out of the power aggregation program'’s alternative default
service anytime within 30 days of notification of rates of such service.

In addition to complying with this process, the Plan must meet certain criteria. As noted, if designed as opt-
out, affected customers must be given the right to opt-out within 30 days of notification of the rate of the
alternative service. Customers on the utility’s default service that do not opt-out will be automatically enrolled
in the new community power aggregation program’s default service. They may also choose alternatives to the
default supply that Exeter Community Power may offer, such as ones with a higher renewable energy content.
Customers that already receive service from a competitive energy supplier will not be automatically enrolled in
Exeter’s program, but may request to opt-in if they choose and if allowed under the contract terms of their
existing supplier agreement. Customers that are new to the utility after the initial program launch (e.g., new
customers) will have the choice of enrolling in either the utility default -service or the community aggregation
program’s default service. The law also addresses important cost sharing and confidentiality issues. The plan
must ensure that customers who do not participate in the aggregation program are not responsible for any
costs associated with the program. The Town may, however, operate the program as a self-supporting
enterprise and additionally has the option of using revenue bonds to support costs, subject to separate voter
approval. Customer data must be treated as confidential and private and not subject to public disclosure
under the right to know law (91-A).

This Plan is designed to be fully compliant with the requirements of RSA 53-E and consistent with industry best
practices. Lastly, while the Public Utilities Commission has not yet adopted CPA Administrative Rules, this plan
commits Exeter Community Power to complying with such rules (once adopted) along with any additional
environmental and service standards established by the Public Utilities Commission and other applicable
agencies and laws and rules concerning the provision of service under Community Power.

B. Proposed Timeline for Implementation
The following chart portrays the approximate timeline for the development and implementation of Exeter

Community Power. It assumes that the Exeter Select Board determines that the Plan be submitted to Town

Final - 12/29/2021 8 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Meeting for approval at this coming March 2022 or at a subsequent Town Meeting. If approved at Town
Meeting the program'’s implementation will then depend on when the Public Utilities Commission adopts the
required rules for Community Power Aggregation and approves Exeter’'s Community Power Program as

presented.

PROPOSED TIMELINE

v o

ECPAC Established

Public Information Material
prepared

Obtain Aggregate Utility
Data

Public Informational
Meetings

Plan Approved by ECPAC
and Presented to BOS

Plan Presented for Adopted
at Town Meeting

Program Implementation*

>>>>

* This timeline will depend on PUC approval of Exeter’s program and when CPA Administrative Rules are adopted.
C. Parameters of Implementation

The Exeter Community Power Program will adhere to implementation parameters as outlined below. The
program will proceed with its launch only if it is able to offer default rates that are initially lower than or
competitive with the fixed energy service charge rates offered by Unitil for residential and general service
customers (rate schedules D and GS-2). Thereafter, the program will:

Serve as the default electricity supplier for all customers on a default “opt-out” basis;

Offer innovative services and generation rates to customers on an "opt-in" or "opt-up” basis (such as 100%
renewable premium products, time-varying rates and Net Energy Metering generation credits for customers
with solar photovoltaics);

Operate on a competitive basis, in that customers may choose to switch between Exeter Community Power,
service provided by competitive electric power suppliers, and utility-provided default service; and

Final - 12/29/2021 9 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Be self-funded through revenues generated by participating customers (the Town will not use taxes to cover
program expenses).

4. Program Organization and Administration

Upon approval of this plan by adoption at Town Meeting, Exeter Community Power will be authorized to

arrange for the provision of electricity and related services to customers within the Town. As detailed in

Section 5, customers currently receiving power through Unitil’s default service will be automatically enrolled in

Exeter Community Power unless they choose to opt-out, and customers on competitive supply may request to

opt-in to the program. The distribution of the purchased electricity will continue to be the responsibility of

Unitil and the costs of distribution and related services will be paid to Unitil.

A. Organizational Structure

Town Meeting: In accordance with RSA 53-E:7, the Exeter Town Meeting, as the Legislative Body for the
municipality, will, by majority approval of those present and voting, decide whether to adopt the
Community Aggregation Plan and thereby authorize the establishment of the Exeter Community Power
Program. A Warrant Article pertaining to this question will be prepared by the Select Board to be in
included in the Town Meeting Warrant for the Exeter Energy Aggregation Plan.

Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee (ECPAC): Within parameters established by the Select
Board, the Aggregation Committee will provide advisory support to the Town as to the ongoing operation
of the program, power procurement options, interactions with service providers and overall performance
of the program. The Committee may also make recommendations to the Select Board regarding
participation in the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH) and regarding entering into
such agreements necessary to implement the program. Additionally, the Select Board may direct the
Electric Aggregation Committee to continue to hold meetings for the purpose of providing community
input.

Select Board: The Exeter Select Board will have overall responsibility for the Exeter Community Power
Program, including oversight and overall governance and will be authorized to contract for the necessary
services and power supplies to implement and operate the program, approve Energy Risk Management

and Financial Reserves policies, and set customer rates prior to program launch and continue to provide

oversight over the program thereafter.

After consultation with the Town Manager and Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee, the
Select Board may (1) decide to conduct a competitive solicitation to hire a Community Power Broker /
Service Provider, and may also collaborate with other interested municipalities to conduct this solicitation
or (2) determine that the public interest is best served by participating fully in the Community Power
Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH) to provide for the launch and operation of Exeter Community Power.

These two options have different organizational structures, as summarized below.



Under the Community Power Broker / Service Provider option:

o Town Manager: If so designated by the Select Board, the Town Manager (or their designee) would
be responsible for carrying out a competitive solicitation process, and may coordinate with other
interested municipalities to conduct a joint solicitation, to hire a Community Power Broker / Service
Provider. Thereafter, the Town Manager would provide management oversight of the Exeter
Community Power program, including direct oversight of the contracts for power purchasing,
customer services, utility relations and fiscal management.

© Community Power Broker / Service Provider: The broker / service provider would manage certain
Program activities under the direction of the Town Manager or designee. Their responsibilities
would include, among others, coordinating and interacting with Unitil, developing and
implementing customer communication and education activities, providing periodic reports to the
Town and negotiating an Electric Services Agreement (ESA) with a Competitive Electric Power
Supplier (CEPS).

© Competitive Electric Power Supplier (CEPS): The Competitive Supplier would be relied upon to
provide all-requirements electricity for the program, along with customer services including staffing
web and telephone based services, and would fulfill other responsibilities as detailed in the Electric
Services Agreement (ESA), under terms deemed reasonable and appropriate for the retail electric
customers by the Town Manager.

Under the Community Power New Hampshire (CPCNH) option:

© Exeter's appointed CPCNH Member Representative (currently, members of the Select Board and
ECPAC) would continue to serve on the Coalition's Board of Directors to help oversee the start-up and
operation of the agency, provide input regarding the Coalition's public advocacy on matters of policy
and regulation, provide feedback and direction to the Coalition's service providers and staff as
operations and customer services evolve over time, and report back regularly regarding the
performance of Exeter Community Power and on any matter that warrants attention or requires action
by the Select Board.

O The Select Board would review and approve the CPCNH Member Cost Sharing Agreement (which
would specify the Town’s choice of services that Exeter Community Power would rely on CPCNH to
provide) along with the Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves pRoliciesy prepared by
CPCNH (which would govern the program’s power procurement and rate-setting decisions). The Select
Board may also delegate certain decision-making authorities to the Town Manager and/or Exeter’s
appointed Member Representative, from time to time, as required to carry out their oversight
responsibilities on behalf of Exeter Community Power.

o The Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire weuld-has issued a competitive solicitation for
the services and credit support necessary to operate the new power agency -and would-will thereafter
be relied upon to procure electricity and provide all the services required to launch and operate Exeter
Community Power (alongside the programs of other participating municipalities across the state).
Note that the Coalition would manage Exeter’s power supply in accordance with the aforementioned



agreements and policiesy approved by the Select Board (which would, for example, stipulate the
Town'’s choice of how to balance considerations of cost versus higher renewable power content).

© The Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire’s Board of Directors would-governs the power
agency to ensure that the power agency provides the services necessary to carry out each of its
members stated policy requirements, such as: increased renewable and local power sources,
competitive rates, the accrual of financial reserves, and the promulgation of local programs. The
Coalition’s Board would carry out its responsibilities in accordance with the processes specified in the
Coalition’s Joint Powers Agreement, including by establishing a number of committees (also composed
of Member Representatives) that meet regularly to provide additional oversight over specific areas of
focus — such as the Executive Committee, Finance Committee, Governance Committee, Member
Operations and Engagement Committee, Regulatory and Legislative Affairs Committee, and Risk
Management Committee. For example, the Risk Management Committee (which includes one of
Exeter’s appointees) has been tasked with managing the competitive solicitation for services and
credit support described above.

e Unitil: Unitil will continue to own and operate the distribution grid and be responsible for delivering
power to all customers within the Town through that system and, in most cases, for billing Exeter
Community Power customers for electricity use. As they are now, customers will be charged for utility
delivery services at rates set by the Public Utilities Commission.

D. Administration

The administration will be carried out based on the division of responsibilities and tasks as described in the
previous section.

E. Methods for Entering into and Terminating Agreements

This Electric Aggregation Plan authorizes the Exeter Select Board to negotiate, enter into, modify, enforce, and
terminate agreements as necessary for the implementation and operation of Exeter Community Power and to
delegate such authorities to the Town Manager and/or the Town’s appointed CPCNH Member Representative
as they deem appropriate.

F. Termination of the Community Power Program

There is no planned termination date for Exeter Community Power. As envisioned, it will continue for as long
as its goals are being achieved and electric customers in Exeter are deriving the intended benefits from the
program.

The program may be terminated by affirmative vote of the Town Legislative Body (Town Meeting). Following
termination, the Exeter Community Power Program would cease operations after satisfying any obligations
contractually entered into prior to termination, and after meeting any advance notification period or other
applicable requirements in statute or regulation. Upon cessation of aperations, participating customers would
either be transferred to default service provided by Unitil or to a competitive electric power supplier of their
choosing.

Einal - 12/29/2021 ) Fxeter Electric Aaareaation Plan



Lxeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

In the event of a decision to terminate the program, Exeter Community Power will provide at least 90 days
advance notice regarding the planned termination of the program to participating customers, the Community
Power Coalition of NH, the Public Utilities Commission and Unitil.

Upon termination, the balance of any funds accrued in the program’s financial reserve fund and other
accounts, if any, would be available for distribution or application as directed by the Exeter Select Board and in
accordance with any applicable law and regulation.

5. Customer Participation

A. Notification and Enrollment

Prior to launch of Exeter Community Power, a written notification will be mailed to every Unitil retail electric
customer in the Town. The Notice will contain instructions on how to “ opt-out” or request to “opt-in” to the
program, depending on whether they currently are on default service provided by Unitil or take service from a
Competitive Electric Power Supplier:

Customers already served by Competitive Electric Power Suppliers will be notified and may request to “opt-in”
to the program; and

Customers currently on default service provided by Unitil will be notified, provided the opportunity to decline
participation, and thereafter transferred to Exeter Community Power if they do not “opt-out”.

The notice will contain all required details regarding the Exeter Community Power Program, including a
description of the program, the implications for Exeter, and customer rights and responsibilities under the
program, including instructions for how to enroll in an optional program or product (see Section 7). The notice
to customers on Unitil default service will additionally include the initial fixed rate and all charges for the
program’s default service that will apply.

All notices will be mailed to customers at least 30 days in advance of program launch and provide instructions
for customers on how to opt-out or request to opt-in to the program (for example, by return postcard, calling a
phone number or using a web portal). All such information and notifications will also be made available on the
Town’s website section established for the Community Power Program.

Optional products, such as energy supplies that have increased renewable power content in excess of the
Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) content of the program’s default product and other energy services may
be offered on an “opt-in” basis. We expect those optional offerings, in addition to other related services, to
develop and expand over time.

G. New Customers

After the launch of Exeter Community Power, and subject to applicable rules established by the Public Utilities
Commission, new customers will be periodically notified by Exeter Community Power or its vendors, provided

Final - 12/29/2021 13 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

with the default service rates of both Unitil and Exeter Community Power, and transferred onto Exeter
Community Power default service, unless they choose to “opt-out” and take service from Unitil or a
Competitive Electric Power Supplier.

H. Opting-out of Exeter Community Power

Customers enrolled in the Exeter Community Power default service may opt-out of the service at any time, by
submitting a request to transfer back to Unitil default service or to a Competitive Electric Power Supplier of

their choosing. Such requests must be submitted with adequate notice in advance of the customer’s next
regular meter reading by their distribution utility (Unitil), as if the customer were on utility-provided default
service or as otherwise provided for by the Public Utilities Commission. (Customers requesting a transfer on
dates other than their next available regular meter reading date may be charged an off-cycle meter reading
and billing charge.)

Customers that have opted-in to an optional service product offered by Exeter Community Power may switch
back to the Unitil default service or to a Competitive Electric Power Supplier, however, such optional service
(for example an opt-up energy supply with higher percentage of renewable energy content) may be subject to
different terms and conditions including longer cancellation notice requirements. This would be the case, for
example, if an optional energy service had cancellation policies that differed from the default service or that
had a specific contract term. Such terms and conditions will be disclosed in advance and as part of the service
agreement.

I. Rights and Responsibilities of Program Participants

All participants will have available to them the same customer protection provisions of the law and regulations
of New Hampshire, including the right to question billing and service quality practices, as they do under the
existing default energy service option with Unitil. Customers will be able to ask questions of and register
complaints with the Town, Unitil, and the Public Utilities Commission. As appropriate, customer complaints
will be directed to either the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire, or the broker / service provider /
competitive supplier, or to Unitil or the Public Utilities Commission.

Participants will continue to be responsible for paying their bills and for providing access to their utility meter
and other equipment necessary to carry out utility operations. Failure to do so may result in a customer being
transferred from Exeter Community Power back to Unitil (the regulated distribution utility and provider) for
default energy service, payment collections and utility shut offs under procedures subject to oversight by the
Public Utilities Commission._

J. Customer Data Privacy

Exeter Community Power shall maintain the confidentiality of individual customer data in compliance with its
obligations as a service provider under RSA 363:38 (privacy policies for individual customer data; duties and
responsibilities of service providers) and other applicable statutes and Public Utilities Commission rules.
Individual customer data includes information that singly or in combination can identify a specific customer
including the individual customer’s name, service address, billing address, telephone number, account
number, payment information, and electricity consumption. Such individual customer data will not be subject

Final - 12/29/2021 14 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



to public disclosure under RSA 91-A (access to governmental records and meetings). Suppliers and vendors for
Exeter Community Power will be contractually required to maintain the confidentiality of individual customer
data pursuant to RSA 363:38, V(b). Appendix 9, Customer Data Protection Plan, details the reasonable security

procedures and practices that the Town and Exeter Community Power will employ to protect individual

customer data from unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or disclosure.

Aggregated or anonymized data that does not compromise confidentiality of individual customers may be
released at the discretion of Exeter Community Power and as required by law or regulation.

K. Electric Assistance Program Eligibility

The statewide Electric Assistance Program (EAP) provides qualifying customers with a discount on their
monthly electric bill ranging from 8% to 76% depending on income and other factors. Exeter Community
Power will support income eligible and enrolled customers in the Electric Assistance Program in the same
manner as they are now so that they continue to receive qualifying discounts.

Electric Assistance Program discounts for all eligible electric utility customers in New Hampshire are funded by
all ratepayers as part of the System Benefits Charge, which is charged to all customers and collected by the
electric utilities as part of their electric service and distribution charge.

At present, the Public Utilities Commission and utilities only support provision of the discount to individual
customers when the customer’s electricity supply charges are billed through the distribution utility. Exeter
Community Power plans to rely on Unitil to bill customer accounts enrolled in the Electric Assistance Program.
Therefore, the establishment of Exeter Community Power will result in no change in the provision or funding of
this program.

L. Universal Access, Reliability and Equitable Treatment for Customers

The Plan provides for universal access for all customers by guaranteeing that all customer classes will be
offered service under equitable terms and that all retail electric customers will have reliable access to the
program. All customers presently enrolled in Unitil’s default service supply will be eligible for automatic
enrollment in the program, and they will be automatically enrolled in the Program unless they choose to opt-
out. All customers enrolled in the program’s default service will have the right to opt-out at any time with no
opt-out charge.

As required by law, the program will ensure the equitable treatment of all classes of customers, subject to any
differences arising from their varying opportunities and tariffs. Customers will be treated the same based on
their circumstances. For example, any customers that request to opt-in after initially declining the opportunity
to participate during the initial enrollment period may be offered rates that reflect how market prices have
changed in the intervening period.

M. Education and Outreach

An Education and Outreach Plan will be implemented to fully inform and educate potential customers and
participants in advance of enrollment in the Community Power Program. The purpose of the Education and



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Outreach Plan is to raise awareness and provide retail electric customers with information concerning their
opportunities, options and rights for participation in the Program.

Upon approval of this Plan, and prior to the start of the Community Power Program, a formal Education and
Outreach Plan will be developed and implemented consisting of several components:

Initial Outreach and Education: This will be conducted in advance of mailing customer notifications. It
is intended to promote general awareness of the upcoming program, minimize any questions
generated by the arrival of the customer notification and maximize recipients’ ability to make an
informed choice about their participation in the Program. This effort will include information about the
goals of the Program, the basic terms and conditions including renewable energy components, and the
opt- out process.

Customer Mailed Notification: as described in Section A above, mailed customer notices will be a key
component of Exeter Community Power’s initial outreach and education initiative.

Opt-Out Period Education & Outreach: The opt-out period will last a minimum of 30 days from the
date of mailing of customer notifications. After notices have been sent, the Program will continue its
education and outreach to provide residents and businesses the opportunity to learn more and find
answers to key questions relating to their decision to opt-out or enroll in one of the optional products
of the program. This will include, at a minimum and per RSA 53-E, a public information meeting within
15 days of sending written customer notifications.

Marketing Plan for Launch: This component identifies the steps the Program may take in marketing,
including identification of media and other community resources, examples of education and outreach
documents, and an expected timeframe for the outreach effort.

Ongoing Outreach & Education: Outreach and education activities will continue following Program
launch. Key elements may include:

o Program performance, particularly relating to competitive market prices, financial status and
adoption of optional program products.

o On-going campaigns to recruit participation into its optional product(s) that contain more
renewable energy than required by law (“Opt-Up campaigns”). Increasing participation in
these products will serve the stated Program goals to expand new renewable energy and
increase overall renewable energy use.

o Promotion and support of the NHSaves energy efficiency program, and other energy efficiency,
weatherization programs and development of local alternative energy generation.

6. Operation and Funding

Final - 12/29/2021 16 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

A. Operations

Exeter Community Power will contract with qualified vendors and carefully vetted suppliers to provide the
services, credit support and electricity required to launch and operate the program.

This plan assumes, but does not require, that Exeter Community Power will participate fully in the Community
Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH) by contracting operational services and power supplies jointly
with other participating Community Power programs. Alternatively, the Town may choose to contract with a
private third-party entity for services required and will formally evaluate the benefits and costs of each option.

CPCNH or the third-party contractors will be expected to fund the upfront cost of implementing Exeter
Community Power, the expense of which will be amortized and recovered in the program’s rates and charges
to participating customers. The Program may also seek opportunities to apply for grant funding, either
independently or through CPCNH.

Services provided by CPCNH or third-party entities required to launch and operate the program may include
the following:

Procurement of energy supplies;

Energy portfolio risk management services;

Wholesale load-serving entity services;

Electronic data interchange services with the utility; and

Customer data management, billing, contact management and communications (such as posting notifications,
managing a call center and website, etc.).

Additional support services such as management and planning, budgeting and rate setting, local project
development support, regulatory compliance, and legislative and regulatory engagement services (on matters
that could impact the program and participating customers) will be addressed through a combination of
CPCNH staff support and/or third-party services.

Exeter Community Power will provide “all-requirements” electricity supply for its customers, inclusive of all of
the electrical energy, capacity, reserves, ancillary services, transmission services (unless otherwise provided for
by Unitil), transmission and distribution losses, congestion management, and other such services or products
necessary to provide firm power supply to participants and meet the requirements of New Hampshire’s
Renewable Portfolio Standard.

Electricity supply contracts will be executed or guaranteed by investment-grade entities, and suppliers will be
required to use proper standards of management and operations, maintain sufficient insurance and meet
appropriate performance requirements.

Additionally, RSA 53-E provides Community Power programs with authorities pertaining to meter ownership,
meter reading, billing, and other related services. These authorities provide Exeter Community Power with the
practical ability to help customers adopt and use innovative technologies (for example, building energy
management, smart thermostats, backup battery storage systems, controllable electric vehicle chargers, etc.)

Final - 12/29/2021 17 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



“Community Power Aggregation Committee

in ways that save money, manage load, enhance grid resiliency and reduce the reliance on fossil fuels in our
power supply.

While a broad range of innovative services are possible through community power, the implementation of
these features and services will take some time to develop. Time is needed both to build the capacity to add
these services but also to allow the Public Utilities Commission to adopt enabling rules and coordination with
Unitil to adapt existing meter and billing system processes. Refer to section 7-A below for Exeter Community
Power’s near-term goals for its startup phase.

Additional information on how Exeter Community Power will implement Load Serving Entity (LSE) services is

found in Appendix 8, How Load Serving Entity Services will be Implemented.

N. Costs, Funding and Rate Setting

All costs of the Exeter Community Power Program will be recovered in the rates and charges paid by
participating customers, under the terms of either the CPCNH Member Cost Sharing Agreement or the Electric
Service Agreement negotiated by a third party community power broker / service provider with a Competitive
Electric Power Supplier (CEPS).

As stipulated by RSA 53-E, customers who choose not to participate in Exeter Community Power shall not be
responsible for any costs associated with the program, apart from incidental costs incurred by the Town prior
to the point at which the program starts producing revenue from participating customers. Incidental costs
may include the cost associated with planning the establishment of Community Power, reviewing service
contracts or the Coalition Joint Powers Agreement by the town attorney, but not any operational or capitalized
costs of the program. Those cost are paid only by the participants.

Exeter Community Power will only launch if it is able to offer default rates that are initially lower than or
competitive with the fixed energy service charge rates offered by Unitil for residential and general service
customers (rate schedules D and GS-2). Going forward the program will strive to maintain competitive rates
for all default service customers, as well as customers who opt-in or opt-up to receive optional retail products,
while also working to achieve the program’s goals. As stated earlier, a major focus of the Program, as set
forth in this Plan is to make renewable electric source more available, accessible and affordable to Exeter

customers.

In consultation with CPCNH, or the third party broker / service provider, and the Energy Aggregation
Committee, the Select Board will adopt ar-Energy Risk Management Reliey-and Financial Reserve pPoliciesy to
govern the program’s power procurement and rate-setting decisions. Rates will be set at a level such that
revenues from participating customers are projected to meet or exceed the ongoing operating and capital
costs of the program.

To ensure the financial stability of Exeter Community Power, a portion of revenues will be deposited in a
financial reserve account. In general, the fund will be restricted for uses such as:

In the near-term, maintain competitive customer rates in the context of price fluctuations in the electricity
market and other factors;



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

In the medium term, as collateral for power purchase agreements (including for the development of new
renewable and battery storage projects), and for additional credit enhancements and purposes that lower the
program’s cost of service; and

Over the long term, may also be used to directly fund other program financial requirements, or to augment the
financing for development of new projects and programs in the later years of the program, subject to the
Select Board's approval.

Changes to the program’s default service rates shall be set and publicly noticed at least 30 days in advance of
any rate change. Meetings at which rate changes are considered will be public meetings, noticed in two public
places at least 10 days in advance of the meeting.

7. Planned Product Options for Electricity Supply

A. General Approach

As stated earlier, some of the broader benefits of Exeter Community Power (see Section 2) will develop over
time. The program’s immediate objectives are: (1) to offer competitive default supply rates with higher
renewable energy content, (2) accrue operational reserves sufficient to ensure long-term financial stability, (3)
offer voluntary products that retail customers may opt-up to receive, such as higher Renewable Portfolio
Standard (RPS) power, and (4) to set Net Energy Metering supply rates that at levels that allow local customer-
generators (e.g. homes with solar panels or geothermal systems) to participate in the program.

The first phase in the startup of Exeter Community Power will focus on balancing competitive electric rates,
renewable power content and the accrual of program reserves to meet these objectives.

0. Planned Initial Electric Supply Options

The table below provides an illustrative example of a default service product and optional “opt-up” products
that could be offered to customers:

OPTIONAL PRODUCTS |
DEFAULT SERVICE
(automatic enroliment) Green Start Green Prime
(“Opt-Up” Option) (“Opt-Up” Option)

. Goal: 5-10% above Renewable ~ENG ~ o
Attributes Portfolio Standard (RPS) 50% Renewable 80-100% Renewable

Meet or beat default utility rate at | Higher or competitive w/ | Exceeds default utility

Price launch default utility rate rate

Final - 12/29/2021 19 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



The products that Exeter Community Power initially offers to customers, and the rates charged for each
product, will be refined and finalized in advance of program launch and as power purchase agreements are
negotiated by the CPCNH or third party service providers on behalf of the Town.

P. Renewable Portfolio Standard Requirements

New Hampshire’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) requires all electricity suppliers to obtain renewable
energy credits (“RECs”) for four distinct “classes” of renewables, each distinguishing between different
technologies and dependent upon the year that the generators came online.

For 2021, Unitil is required to include 21.6% renewable energy in their energy supply. This minimum
compliance requirement will increase incrementally to 25.2% by 2025 and remain fixed thereafter, absent an
increase in the RPS.

Exeter Community Power will seek to procure voluntary renewables in excess of the RPS minimum
requirements from “Class I” resources (as defined in Attachment 3). Additionally, the program could prioritize
including as much renewable energy sourced from generating resources located in New Hampshire and New
England as possible.

8. Inventory of Customer Electric Demand in Exeter

Electricity customers are classified into three broad categories in the table below (Municipal, Residential, and
Commercial & Industrial), which shows the total number and annual electricity usage of all customers within
Exeter. As of the drafting of this plan, we do not have information about the number of customers in each
category currently use the Unitil default energy service versus those who already purchase electricity from a
competitive supplier. Note that only non-municipal customers that are receiving Unitil default service would
be automatically enrolled on an “opt-out” basis into the Exeter Community Power service.

System wide, according to recent “Customer Migration” PUC filings by Unitil, approximately 89% of all
customers and 61% of annual kWh usage are classified under default supply. More detailed standardized
demand data will be obtained from Unitil in advance of initiating procuring electricity. Refer to “Customer Data
Privacy” in Section 5 above_and Appendix 9, Customer Data Protection Plan for details on how data

confidentiality will be maintained in compliance with applicable statutes and regulations.



CUSTOMER ACCOUNT AND USAGE DATA - EXETER

Unitil
Unitil Default Supply Competitive Supply
ALL CUSTOMERS Customers Customers
(Eligible for Opt-Out - e s
Notifleations S ALEs st (Eligible for Opt-In Notifications
& Voluntary Enroliment)
Enroliment)
Annual Annual Annual
Customer Customer Customer
Accounts Usage Accounts Wsdge Accounts Usage
(MWh) (MWh) (MWh)
Municipal 820 7,348.1 8D 18D rBD TBD
Residential 7305 51,727.9 'BL B T8
Comm & Ind 1083 89,075.2 L A BD
Total 9208 148,151.2 18D BD BD TBD

Source: Unitil; information for 2020 calendar year.

9. Relationship with Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire
(CPCNH)

Exeter is a founding member of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (“the Coalition” or
“CPCNH"), a Joint Powers Agency authorized under RSA 53-A (“Agreements Between Governments: Joint
Exercise of Powers”) that will operate on a not-for-profit basis. RSA 53-A enables groups of communities to
exercise the same powers that they are authorized to do individually.

Exeter has appointed representatives to the Coalition’s Board of Directors to help oversee and govern the new
power agency. All meetings are subject to NH’s Right to Know Law and open to the public.

The Coalition was created to facilitate community power programs in towns, cities, and counties across New
Hampshire. Specifically, the Coalition was established to assist in the following ways:

Access the resources and support required to streamline the process of establishing an Electric Aggregation
Committee, drafting an Electric Aggregation Plan and approving a new Community Power program.

Jointly solicit and contract for third-party services and staff support to launch and operate Community Power
programs, without requiring any upfront costs or imposing any financial liabilities on participating
communities.

Participate in joint power solicitations and local project development opportunities.

Share knowledge and collaborate regionally on clean energy and resilient infrastructure development at the
community-level throughout the state.



Advocate for Community Power Programs with the Legislature, and Public Utilities Commission and state
agencies on public policy issues related to energy and Community Power.

The Coalition is governed by its community members under a joint powers agreement executed by each
member with a voluntary and flexible membership structure. It is organized for the purpose of providing cost
competitive electricity services on a statewide basis. See Appendix 67 for additional information about the
Coalition.

This Aggregation Plan assumes, but does not require, that the Exeter Community Power program will rely upon
the Coalition’s member services to launch and operate the program. Based on the design and projected size of
the Coalition, the Aggregation Committee anticipates that implementing community power in Exeter though
CPCNH will result in cost savings, less need for town staff support and enhanced future access to innovative
energy projects and services. However, the Select Board retains the authority to contract for any and all
required program services and electricity supplies, and to pursue program implementation and future projects
independently of the Coalition.

10. Net Metering Compensation

Net metering process in New Hampshire is governed by RSA 362 A. Under the provisions of this statute,
customers who install renewable generation or qualifying combined heat and power systems up to 1,000
kilowatts in size are eligible to receive credit or compensation for any electricity generated onsite in excess of
their onsite usage.

Any surplus generation produced by these systems flows back into the distribution grid and offsets the
electricity that would otherwise have to be purchased from the regional wholesale market to serve other
customers.

Currently, customer-generators are charged their full retail rate for electricity supplied by Unitil and receive
credits for electricity they export to the grid based on Unitil’s Net Energy Metering (NEM) tariffs.

Exeter Community Power, as governed by applicable PUC rules and guidance, intends to provide rates and
terms that compensate participating customer-generators for the electricity supply component of their net
metered surplus generation.

Customer-generators will continue to receive any non-supply related components (e.g., transmission and
distribution credits) directly from Unitil, as specified under the terms of their applicable net energy metering
tariff.

Certain aspects of administering net energy metering will require coordination between Unitil and Exeter
Community Power. The enabling services and strategies that Exeter Community Power may pursue, in order to
benefit and encourage customers to adopt distributed generation, include but are not limited to:

e Dual-billing customer-generators separately for supply services;

e Offering time-varying rates and alternative credit mechanisms to compensate customers for surplus
generation;



Exeter Community Power Aygregation Committee

e Streamlining the establishment of new Group Net Metering and Low-Moderate Income Solar Project
groups;

e Facilitating interval meter and Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) meter installations for customer-
generators; and

e Engaging at the Legislature and Public Utilities Commission to advocate for upgrades and reforms to
metering and billing infrastructure and business processes to enable Net Energy Metering and other
innovative services to benefit customer-generators.

Exeter Community Power’s exact terms, conditions, and rates for compensating and crediting different types
of Net Energy Metering customer generators in Exeter are not established at this time and will be set at duly
noticed public meetings and fully disclosed to all prospective Net Energy Metering customers through the
program’s enroliment and rate setting notification processes as outlined in Sections 5 and 6.

11. Public Input Process

Efforts to inform the public about community power have already begun. The Exeter Community Power
Aggregation Committee (ECPAC) has produced a brochure explaining community power programs and how
Exeter might benefit from participation. In addition, ECPAC hosted a panel discussion aired on Exeter TV in
which members of the Committee, a representative from Unitil, the town manager of Hanover and a founding
member of the Community Power Coalition of NH addressed a set of frequently asked questions as well as
questions from the viewing audience. Both the brochure and the panel’s Q/A can be accessed on the ECPAC
website and are included in the Appendix of this Plan.

Public Hearings required by RSA 53E took place on November 29, 2021 and December 13, 2021. These
hearings were held to inform the public about community power in general, to explain the important features
of Exeter’s electric aggregation plan (EAP), and to invite questions, comments and input from the public on the
draft EAP. Should the Exeter Select Board recommend the adoption of Exeter’'s EAP in a warrant article for
town vote, members of ECPAC will be present at the deliberative session to hear comments and answer
questions from town voters. If the town votes to accept the community power plan, ECPAC will then conduct
additional efforts to reach out to the community, specifically to fully inform and educate potential customers
and participants in advance of the implementation of the program. Specific steps for outreach that will be
taken during program implementation are outlined in Section 5.H. above.

12. Amending the Electric Aggregation Plan

From time to time, it may be necessary to amend the Exeter Community Power Aggregation Plan. As provided
for in RSA 53-E:7, such amendments or modifications to the Plan itself or to the electric aggregation program it
establishes, once adopted by Town Meeting, may be made by the Select Board. Such amendments to the plan
or program may be made following a duly noticed public hearing at which the amendments or modifications
are presented.

Final - 12/29/2021 23 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



13. APPENDICIES

1. Community Power Enabling Statute (RSA 53-E)

2. Public Information Materials

3. Community Power Survey

4. Exeter Community Power Question and Answers Script

5. Public Hearing Notice

6. Overview of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire

7. Available Utility Data

8. How Load Serving Entity Services will be Implemented

9. Customer Data Protection Plan

ry | F 20 /7 7 P W | o 4 i 4y ] .
Final - 12 /2 £ 24 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 1: COMMUNITY POWER ENABLING STATUTES AND
AMENDMENTS

RSA 53-E
Aggregation of Electric Customers by Municipalities And Counties

HB 315
(Amendments to RSA 53-E and related statutes adopted June 24, 2021)

AN ACT relative to the aggregation of electric customers and municipal host customer generators serving
political subdivisions

Final - 12/29/2021 25 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 2: PUBLIC INFORMATION MATERIALS

Final - 12/29/2021 26 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan -



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 3: COMMUNITY POWER SURVEY

Final - 12/29/2021 27 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 4: EXETER COMMUNITY POWER QUESTION AND ANSWERS
SCRIPT |

Final - 12/29/2021 28 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 5: PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Final - 12/29/2021 29 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



COMMUNITY
POWER COALITION
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

For communities, by communities.

Exeter is a founding member of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH), a nonprofit joint
powers agency authorized under RSA 53-A and governed by participating communities under the terms of the
Joint Powers Agreement unanimously approved by Exeter’s Select Board on May 10, 2021.

The Joint Powers Agreement is available on the Coalition’s webpage (https://www.cpcnh.org/about). The

agreement includes the nonprofit’s Bylaws and Articles of Agreement, and details the common purpose,
authorities, structure, Board of Directors, committees, cost sharing principals, liability protections, and other
aspects of the organization.

Joint powers agencies are governed by communities, operated on a not-for-profit basis, and allow Community
Power programs to voluntarily join forces to take advantage of economies of scale and shared services to
boost operational efficiencies.

The public power industry has created over seventy joint powers agencies in the last fifty years, and several
hundred local governments operate Community Power programs through joint powers agencies or
comparable collaborative governance structures in Massachusetts, New York, Ohio, Illinois, and California.

The experience of these markets demonstrates that the economics of joint purchasing can enable access to
advanced services and expertise for participating Community Power programs, which helps keep power rates
competitive and supports long-term financial stability.

Coalition Governance Structure

The Coalition was incorporated on October 1, 2021 by the following founding local government Members: the
cities of Lebanon, Nashua and Dover; the towns of Hanover, Harrisville, Exeter, Rye, Warner, Walpole,
Plainfield, Newmarket, Enfield and Durham; and Cheshire County (https://www.cpcnh.org/incorporation-

article). The city of Portsmouth and the towns of Hudson, New London, Pembroke and Webster joined after

incorporation.

Municipalities that adopt the Joint Powers Agreement in the future may subsequently apply for membership in
the Coalition under the terms and procedures provided for under the joint powers agreement.

Each Member has appointed a Director and Alternate to serve on the Coalition’s Board of Directors. The Board
willdirectly oversees the initial startup and implementation activities of the Coalition.

Exeter and all feunding-other members wil-be-are directly represented on the Coalition’s Board until more
than twenty-one (21) members join, at which point directors will be elected by vote of the members’



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

representatives at annual meetings (with a Board size of between 11 and 21 representatives, at the members’
direction).

Additionally, to exercise more regular oversight over specific aspects of the joint powers agency, the Coalition
will have six standing committees: Executive, Finance, Audit, Regulatory and Legislative Affairs, Risk
Management and Governance. The Board may also establish ad-hoc committees — and has already
established the “Member Operations & Advisory Committee” as such — and each direct project that members
choose to pursue in the future will be overseen by a committee specific to that project.

All meetings of the Coalition are posted online (https://www.cpcnh.org/calendar) and comply with New

Hampshire’s Right-to-Know Law (RSA 91-A) — the purpose of which is to “ensure both the greatest possible
public access to the actions, discussions and records of all public bodies, and their accountability to the people”,
based on the recognition that “openness in the conduct of public business is essential to a democratic society.”

Coalition Member Benefits

The Coalition is governed “for communities, by communities” under a voluntary and flexible membership
structure, will provide competitive electricity service on a statewide basis, and will strengthen the ability of
communities to coordinate effectively on public advocacy issues.

COMMUNITY POWER COALITION: MEMBER BENEFITS

Governed by Statewide Operations = Regulatory and
Communities & Economy-of-Scale  Legislative Affairs

The 186 city and town members of the Coalition (https://www.cpcnh.org/members) represent more than
27045,000 residents, or about 2018% of the population of New Hampshire. To put the anticipated electricity

usage of all Coalition Members Community Power programs in context, at full enrollment of all eligible
customers, the Coalition would be approximately-egquivalentlarger in size to-than the default service loads of
beth-Unitil,_Liberty Utilities and the New Hampshire Electric Coop on an individual basis, which-islarger than-

Liberty Utilities" defaulserviceload-and smaller than Eversource (New Hampshire's largest investor-owned
distribution utility).

Based on the design and projected size of the Coalition, the Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee
anticipates that implementing community power in Exeter though CPCNH will result in cost savings, lower staff
requirements and enhanced access to innovative energy services.

Final - 12/29/2021 31 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

The Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan anticipates relying upon the Coalition’s member services to launch and
operate Exeter Community Power, but approval of this plan does not commit the Select Board to doing so. The
Select Board retains the authority to contract for any and all required program services and electricity supplies,
and to pursue projects independently of the Coalition. (See explanation of alternative program organization
models in Section 4 of the Plan.)

The Coalition was created to provide municipalities across New Hampshire with a number of distinct benefits
in terms of transparency, scope and cost of Community Power services, regulatory and policy engagement,
local program options, quality of energy risk management advice, the accrual of financial reserves sufficient to
ensure long-term financial stability, and opportunities to develop new energy projects.

These benefits are summarized in the “Coalition Member Services” and “Regulatory and Policy Advocacy”
sections below, and additional details are available online (https://www.cpcnh.org/services):

A. Coalition Member Services
The Coalition’s business model has been designed to provide Community Power programs with:

¢ Innovative local programs and customer services: new rates, technologies and services for customers that
lower electricity supply costs and risk for the program in aggregate, along with the electricity bills of
participating customers from a “full bill” perspective (i.e., inclusive of transmission and distribution
charges).

o Energy Risk Management & Financial Reserve Policies, Procedures and Practices: expert guidance on
energy risk management, procurement of a diversified portfolio of energy contracts, rate setting, and
financial reserves — sufficient to ensure the stability and operational continuity of Community Power
programs over the long-term (as technologies, market dynamics, risk factors, consumer preferences and
energy policies continue to evolve).

o Development of Renewable and Battery Storage Projects: joint contracting opportunities for the
construction of new renewable and battery storage projects financed under long-term contracts — to
diversify program energy portfolios, provide a physical hedge against wholesale market price fluctuations,
enhance the resiliency of our electrical grid, and stimulate local construction and economic development.

The Coalition intends to contract with qualified vendors and credit-worthy suppliers to provide the services,
credit support and electricity required to launch and operate Community Power programs. These third parties
are expected to fund the upfront cost of implementing Community Power programs, the expense of which
would be amortized and recovered for a specified term, along with ongoing operating costs, in customer rates.

The extent of services offered by the Coalition is expected to thereafter expand over time, in response to new
market opportunities and ongoing regulatory rule reforms, and to meet the local objectives of participating
Community Power programs. The Coalition also plans to hire a small number of qualified staff to ensure
effective oversight of operations, as well as enhanced transparency and expert management as the Coalition’s
business operations evolve.

B. Coalition Public Advocacy

Changes in law and regulations that adversely impact Community Power programs will be a non-trivial source
of risk for Exeter Community Power.

Final - 12/29/2021 32 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Additionally, extending and maintaining the full range of benefits that Exeter Community Power could create
for customers will require informed participation and advocacy on energy issues at the Legislature and Public
Utilities Commission.

Coordination with other municipalities and Community Power initiatives on matters of common interest
through the Coalition have already produced meaningful results in these areas. For example, over the last year,
the communities involved in the formation of the Coalition have:

e Participated in the Community Power informal rule drafting process, including by providing the initial and
subsequent draft rules for discussion, arranging bilateral meetings with utilities and other stakeholders,
and leading significant portions of the subsequent stakeholder workshops at the request of Public Utilities
Commission staff.

e Intervened in regulatory proceedings to represent the interests of customers and Community Power
programs, such as by advocating for expanded data access in the Commission’s Statewide Data Platform
docket (DE 19-197), under which a settlement agreement with the utilities was negotiated and recently
submitted to the Public Utilities Commission. (If adopted, the settlement would create a “Statewide Data
Platform” to enables data access for customers and Community Power programs, which would be
overseen by a Governance Council that includes Coalition representatives.)

o Testified in legislative hearings — and organized hundreds of people, elected officials and civic
organizations to register in support of the Coalition’s position on key legislation — in order to successfully
negotiate critical amendments to two bills recently signed into law:

o House Bill 315, which clarifies and expands key Community Power authorities; and

o Senate Bill 91, which expands battery storage options for customers as well as Net Energy
Metering for communities and established a committee to study the creation of a new market that
would expand the ability of Community Power programs to buy from in-state generators and
battery storage projects (under 5 megawatts in size).

Exeter Community Power will continue and expand on these activities through the Coalition.
Coalition Cost Sharing Structure & Contracting Process

Under the terms of New Hampshire’s Community Power law (RSA 53-E):

e Community Power programs must be self-funded, with ongoing costs paid for using the revenues
generated by participating customers.

e Municipalities are only allowed to incur incidental costs associated with implementing Community Power
programs, such as the costs necessary to comply with the Community Power law, up to the time that the
program starts to produce revenue from participating customers.

Membership in the Coalition, and the implementation of Exeter Community Power, will not require any
upfront cost for the Town other than such incidental expenses (i.e., the staff time, counsel review of
agreements, and other costs required to comply with the Community Power law).

To provide the services, credit support and electricity supply required to launch and operate Exeter
Community Power:

e The Coalition will administer competitive solicitations on behalf of all participating Community Power
programs to contract with qualified vendors and credit-worthy suppliers.

Final - 12/29/2021 33 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



e Vendors are expected to fund and self-manage the upfront cost of launching Community Power programs,
under at-risk and performance-based contract structures with payments contingent upon successful
launch.

e Program implementation costs for Exeter, along with ongoing operational and power procurement
expenses, will be factored into the customer rates adopted by the Select Board and be recovered from the
revenues received from participating customers after the launch of Exeter Community Power.

Similar solicitations and at-risk, performance-based contract structures have been used to successfully launch
and operate new joint powers agencies in other Community Power markets.

Exeter’s representatives on the Coalition's Board of Directors will-are participatinge in the solicitation of
services, agency startup activities and the development of a cost-sharing agreement with other founding
members.

The Coalition’s Joint Powers Agreement provides certain requirements regarding how costs will be tracked and
shared across participating Community Power programs, which will guide the development of the Coalition
cost-sharing agreement:

e Costs will be tracked in three distinct categories: direct project costs, member services, and general and
administrative costs (which are overhead costs that are not associated with any specific project or member
service);

e  Member cost-sharing agreements will be the same in all material respects: general and administrative
costs will be allocated based on each Community Power program’s share of total electricity usage each
year, while each member will choose and separately pay for the costs of specific services and projects
(under terms that reflect a fair allocation across all the members that chose the same services and
projects); and

e The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Coalition, and of other participating Community Power
programs, will be non-recourse to Exeter (unless expressly agreed to by the Select Board under Exeter’s
Cost Sharing Agreement or a Project Contract).

The Coalition intends to contract for all the services required to launch and operate member Community
Power programs, which is expected to enable access to advanced services and expertise at least cost for Exeter
Community Power. However, note that:

e The Town will be under no obligation to rely on the services provided through the Coalition until the Select
Board executes the Coalition’s cost-sharing agreement and chooses which services will be provided
through the Coalition.

e At that time, the Select Board may decide to rely on the Coalition for all or a subset of the services
required to launch and operate Exeter Community Power. Additionally, if the Select Board decides to rely
on the Coalition to provide all-requirements electricity supply to Exeter Community Power’s customers,
the Select Board will also review and adopt aa- Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves pRoliciesy
provided by the Coalition. The program’s power procurement will be governed by this agreement, such
that the Coalition will, for example, procure power with the renewable content specified by the Town and
balance cost objectives to meet the program’s rate-setting goals.

e Alternatively, the Select Board could decide to withdraw from the Coalition entirely, prior to executing the
cost-sharing agreement, and launch Exeter Community Power independently.

e Lastly, after Exeter Community Power launches, the Town could still decide to procure certain services
independently or to withdraw from the Coalition at a future date, subject to the terms, conditions and any



continuing obligations specified in the cost-sharing agreement approved by the Select Board.
Decisions made by the Select Board regarding how to best implement and operate Exeter Community Power,
including the execution of the Coalition cost-sharing agreement and selection of services provided through the
Coalition, will be made at duly noticed public meetings.

Coalition Energy Risk Management & Financial Reserves Policiesy

Exeter Community Power’s ability to maintain competitive rates, as market prices and Unitil’s default rates
change over time, is a primary goal for the program. Competitive rates will significantly reduce the risk that
customers opt-out of Exeter Community Power and allow the program to achieve our medium- to long-term
goals.

To that end, working with the other members of the Coalition, Exeter Community Power will adopt an-Energy
Risk Management and Financial Reserves pRoliciesy. The purpose of this-these policiesy is to:

e Ensure that Exeter Community Power allocates customer revenues in ways that balance our community’s
goals and objectives over the short-to-long term; and

e Define how the Coalition will conduct energy risk management, procurement and market operations on
behalf of Exeter Community Power (so that the Coalition remains in compliance with our policiesy).

Combined with the operational procedures and practices of the Coalition’s business model, these policies are
designed to ensure that Exeter Community Power and all participating members of the Coalition will be able
to:

e Foresee, forecast and adequately plan for adverse contingencies (such as power supply shocks, economic
downturns and changes in policy and regulations);

e Structure and manage a diversified portfolio (or “book”) of physical and financial energy contracts in order
to (1) hedge price risk in an optimal fashion by assessing the cost of entering into forward contracts against
the risk of wholesale market price exposure, (2) transact quickly to take advantage of changing market
conditions and (3) incorporate energy contracts from a variety of preferred sources (e.g., renewables and
battery storage assets, local generators, customer-generators and demand response programs, etc.);

e Maintain competitive rates, and additionally set aside funds to accrue financial reserves, while also
implementing local programs (designed in ways that lower portfolio costs and risk factors);

e Draw on financial reserves or credit support sufficient to maintain (1) rate stability for participating
customers and (2) adequate cash flow for the Coalition’s operations over the course of any adverse events
and periods.

As Exeter Community Power accrues financial reserves, the Coalition will be able to facilitate additional ways

to lower costs, create new value, and further enhance the financial stability of the program. As one example,

the accrual of sufficient reserves will allow Exeter Community Power to begin self-providing the collateral
required for wholesale power market transactions and power purchase agreements. This will lower the capital
costs and risk premiums otherwise embedded into the price of power contracts negotiated by the Coalition.

Similarly, the Coalition also intends to facilitate joint project development opportunities across participating

Community Power programs, and to explore opportunities to jointly satisfy collateral obligations within these

arrangements.



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Lastly, the combination of the Coalition’s approach to energy portfolio risk management and the accrual of
sufficient financial reserves by participating members is what will enable Exeter Community Power to enter
into long-term contracts — in order to construct new renewable and battery storage projects.

Coalition Design & Start Up Process To-Date

The Coalition “Organizing Group” was initially convened in December 2019, with communities interested in
Community Power meeting regularly to research national best practices and explore the viability of
establishing a collaborative nonprofit to share services across municipalities and counties:

e The Coalition’s initial Organizing Group consisted of the cities of Lebanon and Nashua, the towns of
Hanover and Harrisville, and Cheshire County;

e Technical and community advisors included representatives from both Thayer School of Engineering and
Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth, the Monadnock Sustainability Hub, Clean Energy New Hampshire,
Growing Edge Partners and Community Choice Partners, Inc.;

e Activities were carried out in four working group tracks: Governance Agreements, Regulatory and Policy
Engagement, Design and Implementation, and Community Engagement.

Members of the Coalition’s Organizing Group have:

e Participated in the Community Power informal rule drafting process, including by providing the initial and
subsequent draft rules for discussion, arranging bilateral meetings with utilities and other stakeholders,
and leading significant portions of the subsequent stakeholder workshops at the request of Public Utilities
Commission staff;

e Intervened in regulatory proceedings and legislative hearings to represent the interests of communities
and customers, such as by advocating for expanded data access in the Commission’s Statewide Data
Platform docket, DE 19-197, and successfully negotiating the clarification and expansion of key Community
Power authorities in House Bill 315;

e Assessed power agency design best practices — in terms of public governance and competitive operating
models — by interviewing elected officials, senior staff and vendors operating Community Power programs
in other states, along with representatives from public power associations (such as the American Public
Power Association and the Vermont Public Power Supply Authority) and other industry experts; and

e Hosted a virtual summit on Community Power that was attended by over eighty representatives from
thirty-one municipalities, collectively representing one-quarter of the state’s default electricity market.

The City of Lebanon, using grant funding and in collaboration with the Organizing Group executed legal,
community engagement and professional service contracts to help formally establish and implement the
Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire.

A. Joint Powers Agreement Drafting Process

The Organizing Group began by surveying other Community Power states and the broader public power
industry, assessed the legal and governance structure of a selection of successful nonprofit power agencies
that provide services to multiple municipal members, and interviewed staff and elected officials involved.

After discussing joint governance issues and reviewing the governance documents of comparable entities, the
Organizing Group created a draft Joint Powers Agreement for the Coalition in July 2020. In September 2020,
the City of Lebanon and Town of Hanover, in collaboration with the Organizing Group, reviewed six responses

Final - 12/29/2021 36 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



to a Request for Qualifications and retained the legal services of Duncan, Weinberg, Genzer & Pembroke, P.C.
(DWGP). The firm was hired to provide advice on key aspects of joint power agency governance and to finalize
the Coalition’s Joint Powers Agreement, in compliance with RSA 53-A., with additional support provided by
New Hampshire counsel on a subcontracted basis. DWGP are national leaders with over 50 years in public
power legal guidance, and the project was led by DWGP President Michael Postar Esq.

The Joint Powers Agreement was finalized in December 2020.
C. Community Outreach and Implementation Process

In February 2021, the City of Lebanon, using previously secured grant funding and in collaboration with the
Coalition’s Organizing Group, contracted with Henry Herndon (formerly the Director of Local Energy Solutions
at Clean Energy New Hampshire) and Samuel Golding, President of Community Choice Partners, Inc., to
provide implementation support services prior to launch.

Mr. Herndon is-was enlisted to facilitateing branding and policy communication efforts, drafting an outreach

strategy, compileing resources and facilitateing the engagement of prospective members, and onboardiag new
members and their representatives throughout the state to the Coalition.

Mr. Golding is-adwising-was enlisted to advise on Community Power rule development at the Public Utilities

Commission and other regulatory and legislative affairs, drafting Electric Aggregation Plans and supporting
municipalities through the local approval process, createing educational materials and presentations, drafting
a business plan and budget for the Coalition, adviseing on Board policies and staffing, prepareing vendor
surveys and a request for proposals for the services and financing required to launch Community Power
programs, and assisting in the bid evaluation, award and contracting process.

D. Incorporation, Organizational Development & Request for Services Process

Since incorporating as a Joint Powers Agency and government instrumentality on October 1%, 2021, the
Coalition’s Board of Directors has grown to 374 representatives — elected officials, staff and volunteers
serving on local energy committees — appointed by each of the Coalition’s 196 member communities to serve
as either a Director or Alternate Director.

The Board moved quickly to establish an Executive Committee, Finance Committee, Member Operations &
Engagement Committee, Risk Management Committee, and CEO and Staff Search Committee, -and to put in

place the structures, protocols and work plans required to commence the process of launching the power
enterprise. At present, the Regulatory & Legislative Affairs Committee and Governance Committee are under
formation as well.

Meostrecently—o0n December 17+ 2021, the Coalition issued a Request for Information (RFl) for operational
services and credit support. On April 25 2022, the Coalition issued a Request for Proposals for Comprehensive

Services and Credit Support.- The solicitations areis available online (https://www.cpcnh.org/solicitations) and

accompanied by substantial reference documentation (such as the Coalition’s draft Business Plan).

Additionally, Duncan, Weinberg, Genzer & Pembroke, P.C. was hired by the Coalition to provide legal services,
and to act as General Counsel for the power agency, throughout its startup and early-stage operations,



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Community Choice Partners was contracted as lead technical consultant, and Herndon Enterprises, LLC was

contracted to provide organizational and member services support.-

Since incorporation, the Coalition has received approximately $135,000 in grants and donations to cover start-
up administrative expenses and consulting services and is pursuing additional grant funding and donations to
supplement the agency’s budget.

Final - 12/29/2021 318 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

APPENDIX 7: AVAILABLE UTILITY DATA

Electrical Use Data by Property Class - Town of Exeter (2019 2020)

Customer Migration Report — Unitil System Wide

Final - 12/29/2021 , 39 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



APPENDIX 8: HOW LOAD SERVING ENTITY SERVICES WILL BE
IMPLEMENTED

Exeter Community Power will implement Load Serving Entity (LSE) services, for the purpose of procuring or
selling electricity on behalf of customers participating in the aggregation.

This plan assumes, but does not require, that the Town will participate fully in and rely on the services
provided through the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH) for the purposes of
implementing and operating Exeter Community Power.

The Role & Responsibility of Load Serving Entities

A Load Serving Entity (LSE) is an entity that has registered with ISO New England (ISO-NE, the nonprofit
regional wholesale electricity market operator) as a market participant and assumes responsibility for securing
and selling electric energy and related services to serve the demand of retail customers at the distribution level
(i.e., homes and businesses).

As context, every retail customer in New Hampshire (and across New England) is assigned to a specific Load
Serving Entity at all times:

e Customers on utility default service are periodically re-assigned to whichever Competitive Supplier has
won the utility’s most recent auction or the utility as LSE. Refer to Attachment 4 for an overview of utility
default procurement solicitations.

e Similarly, customers are assigned to a different Load Serving Entity whenever they are transferred to CPA
service on an opt-out default basis, choose to opt-in to take service from the CPA, or switch to a
Competitive Supplier of their choosing.

Consequently, all Competitive Suppliers and Community Power Aggregators (CPAs) in New Hampshire are

required to either:

1. Register as a Load Serving Entity with ISO-NE; or

2. Contract with a third-party that has agreed to be the Load Serving Entity responsible for the Competitive
Supplier’s or CPA’s customers.

To ensure that customers receive firm power supply, there are a variety of services that need to be performed

and electrical products that must be procured or otherwise provided. The required products and services are

referred to as “all requirements energy” (or alternatively, “full requirements service”).

The role of Load Serving Entities is to provide, arrange for, or otherwise pay for the cost of providing all
requirements energy to customers. The majority of these requirements are defined by the ISO-NE wholesale
market operator, which is subject to Federal oversight, but certain requirements are defined by the state in
which the LSE registers to serve customers (Renewable Portfolio Standard requirements, for example).

In New Hampshire, full-requirements energy is defined as the provision or cost of (1) electrical energy,
capacity, and reserves (including transmission and distribution losses); (2) ancillary services, congestion
management, and transmission services (to the extent not already provided by the customer’s utility); (3) the



Exeter Community Power Agyregation Committee

costs associated with complying with New Hampshire’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (i.e., the cost of
purchasing Renewable Energy Credits or, if an insufficient number of credits is procured, the cost of
Alternative Compliance Payments, as detailed in Attachment 3); and (4) other services or products necessary
to provide firm power supply to customers (i.e., because the definition and requirements of the above
products and services are subject to change over time).

Each of the above products and services is procured, provided, and accounted for in different ways, through
market mechanisms and regulated processes that have been designed to accommodate the unique
characteristics of the product or service in question.

Given the complex and capital-intensive nature of providing all requirements electricity to customers, Load
Serving Entities are subject to significant state and Federal oversight, in terms of registration, reporting, and
financial security requirements.

The web pages below provide current information regarding Load Serving Entity registration, financial security,
and renewal requirements to operate in ISO-NE and New Hampshire:

e [SO-NE: New Participant Registration Instructions

e NHPUC: Forms for Competitive Electric Power Suppliers and Electric Load Aggregators

e Eversource: Electric Information for Suppliers & Aggregators

e Unitil: Energy Supplier Resources
o Liberty Utilities: Become a Liberty Utilities Approved Supplier

e New Hampshire Electric Cooperative: Supplier Information

Responsibilities of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH)

The Town currently anticipates that it will contract with CPCNH, as an all-requirements joint powers agency,
for the provision of LSE services, all requirements energy supply and all other energy services required to
implement and operate Exeter Community Power.

CPCNH Competitive Solicitation for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support

On behalf of the Town and CPCNH'’s eighteen other Member communities, each of which are in various stages
of authorizing Community Power Aggregations, CPCNH issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for
Comprehensive Services and Credit Support on April 25, 2022 and is currently conducting a solicitation process
“to select a qualified entity or group of entities to provide comprehensive services and credit support to enable
CPCNH to develop, finance, launch, and operate of Community Power Aggregation (CPA) programs.”* As
context:

e For an overview of CPCNH’s authorities as a Joint Powers Agency, the RFP, proposal evaluation and
contracting process, and the process by which CPCNH’s Board of Directors and participating Member
communities, including the Town, plan to draft and adopt enabling agreements, contracts and policies
(such as the Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves policies) refer to “Responsibilities of the

1 CPCNH’s Request for Proposals for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support, and additional supporting reference
documentation, including the draft Business Plan for CPCNH, are posted online here: https://www.cpcnh.org/solicitations.

Final - 12/29/2021 41 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH)” in Attachment 10: Customer Data Protection
Plan below.

CPCNH’s RFP is primarily based upon the solicitation and contracting strategy pioneered by the Redwood
Coast Energy Authority (RCEA), a CPA Joint Powers Authority in California that is similar in size to CPCNH
and which successfully contracted for comprehensive services and credit support (inclusive of LSE services)
on an at-risk, deferred compensation basis.

o RCEA subsequently launched CPA program service and began providing LSE services and all-
requirements supply to CPA customers in 2017 and has operated continuously while accruing
financial reserves and enabling numerous local programs and new project developments.

o The three Professional Services Agreements that RCEA negotiated and executed subsequent to
their RFP process provided (1) LSE and portfolio risk management services and credit support, (2)
retail data management, billing, and customer care services, and (3) various support services {e.g.,
administration, marketing, etc.). All three contracts are available for review online here.

Subsequent CPA Joint Powers Agencies have employed similar solicitation and contracting strategies in
order to successfully contract for and implement LSE and portfolio management services for participating
CPA customers.

CPCNH previously issued a Request for Information for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support in
December 2021 and received numerous submissions from well-established third-party vendors that
provide LSE services, portfolio management services and credit support in response. (CPCNH’s Board of
Directors has designated the responses as confidential due to fact that the competitive solicitation is
ongoing.)?

The scope of operational services requested under CPCNH’s RFP is to broadly “provide all required services and
credit support necessary to operate the agency and supply all-requirements electricity to CPA customers”. The
specific scope of operational functions requested in CPCNH's RFP is provided below:

1. Retail Data Management and Billing Services
a. Utility Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)
b. Customer Data Validation and Error Resolution Management
Billing Calculations
Utility Payment Receipt
e. Revenue Oversight and Tracking
2. Retail Customer Solutions
Customer and Program Analytics and Insights
Rate Design Development, Pricing and Product Structuring
Grid Edge Enablement and Portfolio Integrations
Key Account Relationship Management
Inbound and Outbound Call Center Operations
Digital Engagement and Orchestration
olio Risk Management Services
Energy Portfolio Planning and Development
Contract Valuation and Procurement
Deal Capture, Contract Management and Counterparty Monitoring
Trading, Position Management and Reporting
Forecasting, Scheduling and Settlements

Qo

3. Po

pansadmmansa

2 CPCNH’s Request for Information for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support is available online at:
https://www.cpcnh.org/solicitations

Final - 12/29/2021 42 Exeter Electric Aggregution Plan



Exeter Community Power Agyregation Committee
gyrey

f. 15O shadow settlements and dispute resolution
g. ISO monitoring, stakeholder processes, collateral posting and onboarding support
4. Banking and Financial Services
a. Credit Support
b. Secure Revenue Account Administration
¢. Accounting Support and Controls
d. Financial Statement Setup and Review
e. Revenue Forecasting and Budgeting
f. Invoice Validation
5. Enterprise Data Management: to support the development of an in-house central repository of
customer and other data for use by CPCNH staff and authorized third parties for the purpose of
enabling research and development of new energy services.
6. Additional Services: respondents should provide additional descriptions of services not provided for
above.

CPCNH Proposal Evaluation Process and Contracting Timeline

As detailed in Attachment 10, CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee is responsible for evaluating, ranking,
and scoring proposals and recommending an award to the Board of Directors.

To ensure that the committee fully evaluates proposals to provide LSE and portfolio management services,
CPCNH has contracted with independent experts with domain expertise in:

e Managing and overseeing power supply portfolios and LSE services for an operational CPA Joint Power
Agency;

e Evaluating proposals, interviewing proposers, and recommending an award for LSE and portfolio
management services on behalf of a CPA Joint Power Agency that subsequently launched CPA program
service, has operated continuously since 2018, and recently gained an industry-first “A” credit rating from
S&P Global Ratings on the basis of its fiscal discipline and approach to energy portfolio risk management;
and/or

e Working for an established publicly owned nonprofit enterprise that maintains three operational control
centers to support 24/7/365 operations across multiple ISO/RTO markets in order to provide LSE and
portfolio management services to substantial numbers of public and private sector clients that serve retail
end-use customers.

CPCNH expects to conclude the RFP process, enter into contract negotiations in July-August, and execute
contracts to provide comprehensive services and credit support (inclusive of LSE services) in August to
September 2022,

Thereafter, CPCNH’s Board of Directors expects to finalize and approve the agency’s Cost Sharing Agreement
and Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves policies, which Exeter’s appointed Directors expect to
provide to the Select Board for approval between October — December 2022.

At this point, the Town may contract for and authorize CPCNH to provide comprehensive services and credit
support (inclusive of LSE services) to implement and operate Exeter Community Power.

Final - 12/29/2021 43 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aygregation Committee

Responsibilities of the Town of Exeter

The Town expects that CPCNH'’s solicitation and contracting strategy will be successful, and that CPCNH and
the third-party contractors contracted by CPCNH will implement LSE services and all other services required to
launch and operate Exeter Community Power.

Depending on the result of CPCNH’s solicitation and contract negotiation process, LSE services may be
implemented as follows:

e CPCNH may contract directly for LSE services with a third-party that is registered or will register with 1SO-

NE as a market participant and Load Serving Entity, satisfies all applicable financial security and other
registration requirements with ISO-NE, the Commission, and NH’s distribution utilities, and has
contractually agreed to assume responsibility for providing all requirements energy on behalf of Exeter
Community Power’s customers.
Typically, such a third-party would additionally provide portfolio management services and credit support
and assist CPCNH in structuring and maintaining a portfolio of physical and financial contracts to provide
all requirements energy to participating customers. At a certain future point, CPCCNH may be positioned to
register with NEPOOL and ISO-NE as a market participant and Load Serving Entity directly.?

This implementation option would essentially replicate the same approach and structure employed by the
New Hampshire Electric Cooperative, which actively manages an all-requirements energy portfolio,
accrues financial reserves, and provides LSE services for default service customers.

Additionally, note that the Town of Hanover (whose Member director and alternate director are both
participating on CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee and proposal evaluation) is already a market
participant and Load Serving Entity for the Town’s load obligations.

e CPCNH may alternatively contract with one or more Competitive Electric Power Suppliers to provide LSE
services and all requirements electricity to customers at a pre-specified rate for a set length of time.
Under this arrangement, the Competitive Supplier would either be the designated Load Serving Entity or
would contract with a third-party that has agreed to be the Load Serving Entity responsible for the CPA’s
customers.

This implementation option would essentially replicate the same approach and structure employed by
NH’s regulated distribution utilities (Eversource, Unitil and Liberty Utilities), under which customers are

periodically re-assigned to whichever Competitive Suppliers have won the utilities’ default service
solicitations. Refer to Attachment 4 for an overview of utility default procurement solicitations.

e CPCNH may also propose a combination of the above approaches for the Town’s consideration.

In the event that the Town does not contract with CPCNH to provide LSE and other services to Exeter
Community Power, then the Town may contract to implement LSE services independently, either with a third-
party LSE acting as the Town’s agent or with a Competitive Electric Power Supplier (CEPS) that contracts to
provide LSE services for customers taking service from Exeter Community Power.

3 Refer to CPCNH’s draft Business Plan for further details, available under RFP Reference Materials online at:
https://www.cpcnh.org/solicitations

Final - 12/29/2021 44 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

The Town will ensure that contracts entered into provide for the implementation of LSE services and full
requirement energy supply for customers participating in Exeter Community Power.

Final - 12/29/2021 45 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



APPENDIX 9: CUSTOMER DATA PROTECTION PLAN

Exeter Community Power will protect and maintain the confidentiality of Individual Customer Data in
compliance with its obligations as a Service Provider under RSA Chapter 363 ( RSA 363:38 and RSA 363.37
(“privacy policies for individual customer data; duties and responsibilities of service providers and definitions”)

and other applicable statutes and Public Utilities Commission rules.

Individual Customer Data (ICD) includes information that is collected over the course of providing energy
services to customers participating in Exeter Community Power and that, singly or in combination, can be used
to identify specific customers, including: individual customer names, service addresses, billing addresses,
telephone numbers, account numbers, electricity consumption data, and payment, financial, banking, and
credit information.

As described herein, the Town of Exeter is responsible for ensuring that reasonable security procedures and
practices are implemented and maintained to protect the confidentiality of Individual Customer Data from
unauthorized access, destruction, modification, disclosure, or use.

This plan assumes, but does not require, that the Town will participate fully in the Community Power Coalition
of New Hampshire (CPCNH) for the purposes of implementing and operating Exeter Community Power.

Responsibilities of the Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire (CPCNH)

CPCNH is a Joint Powers Agency authorized under RSA 53-A (“Agreements Between Governments: Joint
Exercise of Powers”) and RSA 53-E:3 (“Municipality and County Authorities”). CPCNH’s Joint Powers Agreement

expressly authorizes the agency to:*

e “[Clomply with orders, tariffs, and agreements for the establishment and implementation of
community power aggregations and other energy related programs”;

e “Make and enter into contracts” and “[mJake and enter into service agreements relating to the
provision of services necessary to plan, implement, operate, and administer CPCNH'’s affairs”; and

e “[D]o all acts permitted... as well as any act necessary, consistent with New Hampshire law to fulfill the
purposes” set forth under the agreement, which include assisting “member municipalities and counties
in complying with the provisions of NH RSA 53-E in developing and implementing ... Community Power
Aggregations”.

CPCNH has begun the process of soliciting and hiring third-parties to provide comprehensive services and
credit support to launch Member CPA programs, and is drafting various related enabling agreements, policies,

and internal protocols necessary to do so.
CPCNH Request for Proposals for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support

CPCNH issued a Request for Proposals for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support on April 25, 2022, and is
currently conducting a solicitation process “to select a qualified entity or group of entities to provide

* From Section 2.3, Powers, of the By-Laws of CPCNH, found at pages 21-22 of the JPA, available here:
https://www.cpcnh.org/ files/ugd/202f2e 601bfada901c4a89alc2812a0638090a.pdf, and more specifically §2.3.11,
§2.3.6, §2.3.9, and §2.3 introductory paragraph. Similar language in also in the Articles of Agreement.

inal - 12 /292021 LA Sveter Fleetr \aareaation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

comprehensive services and credit support to enable CPCNH to develop, finance, launch, and operate of
Community Power Aggregation (CPA) programs”s on behalf of CPCNH's nineteen Member communities, each
of which are in various stages of authorizing Community Power Aggregations.

For additional information regarding the use of customer data, and expected operational needs of CPCNH,
refer to (1) the RFP at pp. 20-23¢ and to (2) the RFP Addendum #2 (issued May 24, 2022), at pp. 11 in response
to Questions 15.7 The latter is excerpted below, and provides a concise summary of CPCNH’s requirements to
ensure the confidentiality of ICD:

Regarding Customer Privacy Compliance:

RSA 53-E:4, VI, requires CPAs to maintain the confidentiality of individual customer information in
compliance with their obligations as service providers under RSA 363:37 (Definitions) and RSA 363:38
(“Privacy Policies for Individual Customer Data; Duties and Responsibilities of Service Providers”). RSA 53-E:7,
X also requires the Public Utilities Commission to adopt Administrative Rules for CPAs governing “access to
customer data” and other matters.

The selected Proposer will be expected to demonstrate physical and cybersecurity readiness sufficient to

ensure customer data is held in strict confidence — e.g., through audits in accordance with the American

Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16 (SSAE

16) Service Organizational Controls (SOC) Reports, periodic network vulnerability assessments, etc. — and

will be contractually required to maintain the confidentiality of individual customer data pursuant to RSA_
363:38, V(b) and applicable Public Utilities Commission rules.

As previously noted, Administrative Rules for CPAs are under development. Refer to the PUC’s Initial
Proposal for CPA Administrative_Rules (Chapter Puc 2200), specifically the definitions in Puc 2202.07
(“Confidential customer information”) and Puc 2202.02 (“Anonymized”), and Puc 2205.02 ("Application of
Puc 2000 to CEPS When Providing Electricity Supply to CPA Customers").

The selected Proposer, as applicable, should expect to comply with relevant portions of the PUC’s current
Administrative Rules for Competitive Electric Power Suppliers and Aggregators (Chapter Puc 2000). Refer to
Chapter Puc 2000, Puc 2002.09 (definition of “Confidential Customer Information”) and Puc 2004.19
(“Protection of Confidential Customer information”}, which is proposed to apply to CEPS providing electricity
supply service to CPA customers pursuant to Puc 2205.02 under the PUC's Initial Proposal for CPA
Administrative Rules.

The Request for Proposals and evaluation process is being overseen by CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee,
composed of CPCNH Member municipality representatives, with additional support from (1) independent
experts with experience operating Community Power Aggregation Joint Powers Agencies, and (2) CPCNH’s
General Counsel, DWGP, P.C., a nationally recognized law firm with substantial expertise in the Community
Power and broader public power industry.

CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee will evaluate, rank, and select vendors with a proven track record of
successful qualification for EDI transactions, protection of confidential customer information, including what is
characterized as ICD under RSA 363, and other relevant factors.

s CPCNH’s Request for Proposals for Comprehensive Services and Credit Support, and additional supporting reference
documentation, including the draft Business Plan for CPCNH, are posted online here: https://www.cpenh.org/solicitations.
s https://www.cpcnh.org/ files/ugd/202f2e e781638c123d4cf3977358f845081313.pdf

7 Pages 11-12 at https://www.cpcnh.org/ files/ugd/202f2e 8ceed8824453482c902a8a0falab826c.pdf.

Final - 12/29/2021 47 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan




fxeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

e Refer to CPCNH’s RFP at p.2 for a summary of the substantial domain expertise participating on the Risk
Management Committee and proposal evaluation process.

o For example, the committee includes a Member Director who previously worked for Eversource for 26
years, where he was responsible for deploying and/or operating Eversource’s Customer Information
System and day to day interface with competitive electric suppliers and was most recently the Director of
Eversource’s Customer Center Operations.

CPCNH expects to conclude the solicitation process and execute contracts in August to September 2022.
CPCNH Enterprise Risk Management & Customer Data Policies

After CPCNH has executed service contracts, CCCNH’s Board of Directors will finalize and approve the agency’s
Cost Sharing Agreement and Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves policies. CPCNH’s Energy Risk
Management and Financial Reserves policies will be subsets of CPCNH’s Enterprise Risk Management Policy,
which will additionally cover relevant elements of cybersecurity and data confidentiality requirements and
other topics. V

e CPCNH’s Joint Powers Agreement requires CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee to draft and recommend
the Enterprise Risk Management Policy for consideration and adoption of CPCNH's Board of Directors on
or before October 1, 2022.2

e Between October and December 2022, Exeter’s appointed Directors are expected to provide CPCNH's Cost
Sharing Agreement and Energy Risk Management and Financial Reserves policies to the Select Board for
approval between October — December 2022.

e At this point, the Town will contract for and authorize CPCNH to provide specific services on behalf of
Exeter Community Power.

CPCNH’s Board of Directors has been recently presented with a plan to develop additional specific policies and
CPCNH's Treasurer has prepared a budget to allocate sufficient funding to support the drafting and review
process over the summer and fall. Two relevant such policies are listed below:

e Record Retention & Disposal Policy: to provide a process that ensures compliance with the proper
retention, protection, and timely destruction of all records created or obtained by, or otherwise in the
possession and control of, CPCNH, consistent will all legal requirements.

e Data Security and Privacy Policy: to define the specific goals, requirements, and controls necessary to
safeguard the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of confidential information.

CPCNH Requirements to Access and Use of Individual Customer Data

In CPCNH’s capacity as a service provider to the Town, the agency and third parties contracted through CPCNH
to provide services to Exeter Community Power will need to access and use ICD for operational needs and for
the research, development, and implementation of new rate structures and tariffs, demand response,
customer assistance, energy management, or energy efficiency programs on behalf of Exeter Community
Power.

¢ CPCNH’s Risk Management Committee is also responsible for (1) reviewing major risk exposures and monitoring the
steps taken to control risk exposures and (2) commissioning an independent agent to conduct and deliver an evaluation of
the operational performance of the agency relative to the Enterprise Risk Management Policy every two years (starting
three years after the commencement of CPA service, and as otherwise requested by the Board).

Final - 12/29/2021 48 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aygreyation Committee

Third parties under contract to CPCNH that may require access to ICD on behalf of Exeter Community Power
may include CEPS (Competitive Electric Power Suppliers) functioning as Load Serving Entities (LSEs) for the
supply of all requirements energy, or other third-party vendors providing Load Serving Entity (LSE) services on
behalf of CPCNH, as well as portfolio management, Electronic Data Interchange (EDI), Customer Information
System (CIS), billing, accounting, and related services, and other contractors and academic institutions under
contract to support the research and development of potential new energy services to offer to customers
participating in Exeter Community Power.

Specific types of ICD that Exeter Community Power, CPCNH, and third parties under contract are expected to
receive and possess include:

e Name, address, account number, and other information about electric customers within the Town for
purposes of sending required notification of Exeter Community Power Commencement of Service
and enrollment of customer in Exeter Community Power, consistent with initially proposed Puc
2204.04, .05, and .06, as they, or equivalent rule provisions, may be adopted by the PUC and the
requirements of RSA 53-E:7, Ill, V, and VI.

o Individual customer information used for operation of Exeter Community Power, such as that in
initially proposed Puc 2205.13, most of which may be accessed through the EDU EDI. The need and
use for such information, and a proposed modification of this particular rule, are addressed in
CPCNH'’s 3/14/22 Comments on the PUC’s initial rule proposal for CPAs, in docket # DE 21-142°, and
in its 3/28/22 Reply Comments. 1

e Other confidential customer information that may be received or collected directly by Exeter
Community Power or CPCNH, or through sources other than the EDU due to customer participation in
particular related programs or services, billing operations, other customer services, or that may be
volunteered by customers, will likewise only be used for statutorily authorized purposes as ICD.

Ongoing collection and use of individual customer data of the types described in proposed Puc 2205.13 will
be used for both:

1. General operational needs for retail power supply and related energy services operational needs,
such as load and supply forecasting, portfolio management, billing and audit processes, and for
research and development of potential new energy services to offer to customer participants; and

2. Programmatic and customer-specific services and offerings, such as responding to customer account
queries, opt-in rates or demand side management for customers with flexible demand, distributed
generation or storage, and interval meters; and other energy services that may be offered including
programs for LMI participants that are qualified in the Electric Assistance Program (EAP).

In compliance with RSA 363:38 and RSA 363.37, CPCNH and third parties contracted through CPCNH that
require access to ICD to provide services to Exeter Community Power will be contractually required to:

e Implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of
the ICD.

e Protect ICD from unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or disclosure.

*See p. 2 114 and p. 4 16 at: https://www.puc.nh.gov/Regulatory/Docketbk/2021/21-142/LETTERS-MEMOS-TARIFFS/21-
142 2022-03-14 CPCNH_COMMENTS.PDF.
10 See p.4-11, and Comments on proposed Puc 2203.02(b}(1) on p. 13, Puc 2204.02(a)(1)-(4) on pp. 16-17, and Puc 2205.13

p. 23 https://www.puc.nh.gov/Regulatory/Docketbk/2021/21-142/L ETTERS-MEMOS-TARIFFS/21-142 2022-03-

28 CPCNH_OCA CENH-COMMENTS.PDF.

Final - 12/29/2021 49 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



e Use ICD solely for primary purposes, such as: complying with the provisions of RSA 53-E:7, II; providing
or billing for electrical service; meeting system, grid, or operational needs; researching, developing,
and implementing new rate structures and tariffs, demand response, customer assistance, energy
management, or energy efficiency programs; and for research and development of potential new
energy services to offer to customer participants.

e Collect, store, use, and disclose only as much ICD as is necessary to accomplish the aforementioned
primary purposes.

e Not use ICD for a secondary commercial purpose unrelated to the aforementioned primary purposes
of the contract without the express consent of the customer,

e Return or permanently delete all ICD after contract termination and deliver a certificate, signed by an
authorized representative, stating that all ICD has been returned or permanently deleted and that all
materials based on ICD has been destroyed, as appropriate (i.e., except for copies necessary for tax,
billing, or other financial purposes).

Additionally, if CPCNH contracts with one or more Competitive Suppliers to provide Load Serving Entity
services to participating customers, or brokers to support operations in a capacity that would require access to
ICD, then the Competitive Suppliers and/or brokers would additionally be required to comply with the
requirements of Puc 2004.19 (Protection of Confidential Customer Information), which are excerpted below in
the section “Statutory and Rule Requirements” for reference.

Responsibilities of the Town of Exeter

The Town currently anticipates that it will contract for all requirements electricity supply and related energy
services through CPCNH, as a joint powers agency, and that the primary acquisition and use of ICD will be
through CPCNH and the vendors placed under contract to provide comprehensive services for the operation of

Exeter Community Power.

The Town Manager shall review and confirm that CPCNH has adequate policies, procedures and measures in
place to protect confidential information and that contractual requirements consistent with the Town’s
obligations to protect ICD as required under RSA 363.37, RSA 363:38 and RSA 53-E:4, VI, and consistent with
PUC rules, including Puc 2004.19 and its non-disclosure restrictions, are incorporated into any contracts with

CPCNH, or any other third parties that are authorized to access ICD on behalf of the Town before executing
any such contracts.

The Town expects contracts and policies to provide for:

e Third-party security assessment requirements regarding: Information Security Management; Personnel
Security; Systems Development and Maintenance; Application Security; System Security; Network
Security; Data Security and Integrity; Access Control; and Vulnerability Management.

e Third-party security requirements including: (1) User Account and Access Controls to ensure that only
authorized individuals have access to ICD for legitimate primary purposes under RSA 368:38, which may
include the need for non-disclosure agreements; (2) Handling of Sensitive Data Protocols to protect
confidential customer information from unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or
disclosure; (3) Breach Reporting, including obligations to report a security breach as defined in RSA 359-
C:19, V and required by RSA 359-C:20 and any other applicable laws, rules, or utility requirements for
data breach reporting; (4) Plan for deletion and destruction ICD when it is no longer necessary to
accomplish primary purposes pursuant to RSA 368:38; and (5) Prohibitions on use of ICD for a secondary

Final - 12/29/2021 C N Eloetri \aareaation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

commercial purpose not related to the primary purpose of vendor’s contract without the express consent
of the customer.

e Third-party documentation and reporting requirements regarding, as applicable: Audit Reports (e.g. SSAE
16/SOC Report); Documentation describing Control practices used to review sub-vendors; Maintenance
of an Information Security Program; Training Program for Employees on Cyber Awareness; Background
checks performed for all employees with access to ICD; Immediate Data Breach reporting to appropriate
parties; and any material changes in Data Security practices since prior review and approval.

Lastly, in the event that the Town does not contract with CPCNH to provide energy services to Exeter

Community Power, then the Town will develop and adopt policies and contracts that ensure compliance with

the Town’s obligations as a Service Provider to protect and maintain the confidentiality of ICD under RSA _

363:38, RSA 363.37 and other applicable statutes and Public Utilities Commission rules prior to directly

collecting, storing, using, or disclosing any ICD or contracting with other Competitive Suppliers, brokers and/or

other third-party vendors that require access to ICD.

Additional References: Statutory and Regulatory Requirements

The sections below are provided for additional reference, and summarize the different requirements that
apply to (1) Community Power Aggregators and Service Providers, (2) brokers and Competitive Electric Power
Suppliers (CEPS) that provide Load Serving Entity services under contract to Community Power Aggregators,
and (3) access to ICT through the Multi-Use Energy Data Platform authorized under RSA 378:50-54 (if and
when it becomes operational).

Statutory Requirements for Community Power Aggregators & Service Providers

Statutory requirements regarding the use of Individual Customer Data for Community Power Aggregators are
summarized below:

e RSA 363:37, | defines Individual Customer Data (ICD) as “information that is collected as part of
providing electric, natural gas, water, or related services to a customer that can identify, singly or in
combination, that specific customer, including the name, address, account number, quantity,
characteristics, or time of consumption by the customer.”

e RSA 363:38, IV requires Service Providers to “use reasonable security procedures and practices to
protect individual customer data [ICD] from unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or
disclosure.”

e RSA 53-E:4, VI provides that Community Power Aggregations (CPAs) “shall be subject to RSA 363:38
as service providers and individual customer data shall be treated as confidential private information
and shall not be subject to public disclosure under RSA 91-A".

o The definition of Service Provider under RSA 363:37, Il includes “an aggregator, as defined by
RSA 53-E:2, Il...and any other service provider that receives individual customer data [ICD]..."”

o RSA 53-E:2, Il defines an “aggregator” in this context as “any municipality or county that
engages in aggregation of electric customers within its boundaries”.

o RSA 53-E:2, VI further defines “municipality” in this context as “any Town, town,
unincorporated place, or village district within the state.”

e RSA 363:38, Il requires Service Providers to: “(a) Collect, store, use, and disclose only as much
individual customer data [ICD] as is necessary to accomplish primary purposes, and (b) Use individual

Final - 12/29/2021 51 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aygreyation Committee

customer data solely for primary purposes.”

e RSA 363:37, lll defines “[pJrimary purpose" as “the main reason for the collection, storage, use, or
disclosure of individual customer data [ICD] which is limited to: (a) Providing or billing for electrical or
gas service. (b) Meeting system, grid, or operational needs. (c) Researching, developing, and
implementing new rate structures and tariffs, demand response, customer assistance, energy
management, or energy efficiency programs.”

e RSA 53-E:4, VI further authorizes approved Community Power Aggregations to “use individual
customer data to comply with the provisions of RSA 53-E:7, Il and for research and development of
potential new energy services to offer to customer participants.”

e RSA 363:38, V(b) further makes clear that a Service Provider may disclose ICD “to a third party for
system, grid, or operational needs, or the research, development, and implementation of new rate
structures and tariffs, demand response, customer assistance, energy management, or energy
efficiency programs” — provided that the Service Provider “has required by contract that the third
party implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices appropriate to the
nature of the information, to protect the personal information from unauthorized access, use,
destruction, modification, or disclosure, and to prohibit the use of the data for a secondary
commercial purpose not related to the primary purpose of the contract without the express consent of
the customer.”

e RSA 363:38, V(c) provides that “[njothing in this section shall preclude a service provider from
disclosing electric, natural gas, or water consumption data required under state or federal law, or
which is identified as information subject to warrant or subpoena or by an order of the commission.”

e RSA 363:38, V(a) makes clear that ICD may be aggregated and used for “analysis, reporting, or
program management after information that identifies an individual customer has been removed.”

Additional Requirements Specific to Brokers & Competitive Suppliers

Pursuant to Puc 2205.02 under the PUC's Initial Proposal for CPA Administrative Rules, brokers and
Competitive Suppliers that are hired by municipalities to manage and operate Community Power Aggregations
and provide Load Serving Entity services to participating customers must comply with the requirements of Puc
2004.19 (Protection of Confidential Customer Information), which is excerpted below for reference along with
Puc 2002.09 (Confidential Customer Information).

Note that the use of the term “aggregator” throughout Puc 2004.19 below refers to brokers and does not refer
to or otherwise apply to Community Power Aggregators.

As context, these requirements are part of the Commission’s Chapter Puc 2000 rules (“Competitive Electric
Power Supplier and Aggregator Rules), which apply to Competitive Suppliers and brokers— referred to as
“CEPS” and “aggregators” below, respectively — and are expressly not applicable to “municipalities or counties
providing electricity or aggregating within the boundaries of participating municipalities under RSA 53-E”
{Community Power Aggregators) per Puc 2001.02 (application of rules).

Puc 2002.09 “Confidential customer information” means information that is collected as part of
providing electric services to a customer that can identify, singly or in combination, that specific
customer, and includes the customer name, address, and account number and the quantity,

Final - 12/29/2021 52 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggreyation Committee

characteristics, or time of consumption by the customer, and also includes specific customer payment,
financial, banking, and credit information.

Puc 2004.19 Protection of Confidential Customer Information.

(a) No CEPS or aggregator shall, except as permitted under (c) below or as otherwise required by law,
release confidential customer information without express written authorization from the customer.

(b) A CEPS or aggregator shall implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices
appropriate to the nature of the information, to protect confidential customer information from
unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or disclosure, and to prohibit the use of the
confidential customer information for a secondary commercial purpose not related to the primary
purpose of the service provided to the customer, without the express written consent of the customer.

(c) A CEPS or aggregator may disclose to a third party subject to non-disclosure restrictions confidential
customer information as necessary for any one or more of the following purposes:

(1) Billing for electric service;

(2) Meeting electric system, electric grid, or other operational needs;

(3) Implementing any one or more of the following programs:
a. Demand response;
b. Customer assistance;
C. Energy management; and

d. Energy efficiency.

(d) For purposes of this section, the term “non-disclosure restrictions” means that the CEPS or
aggregator has required by contract that the third party implement and maintain reasonable security
procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of the information, to protect the confidential
customer information from unauthorized access, use, destruction, modification, or disclosure, and to
prohibit the use of the confidential customer information for a secondary commercial purpose not
related to the primary purpose of the contract without the express consent of the customer.

(e) A customer granting authorization to release confidential customer information for purposes
described in the terms and conditions of service shall satisfy the requirement in (a) above.

(f) A CEPS or aggregator granted agency authority shall be deemed authorized to obtain customer
usage information when it has received customer authorization as described in Puc 2004.08 or Puc
2004.089.

(g) In the event of a dispute about the release of confidential customer information, including whether
the information is or should be confidential, a CEPS, aggregator, or customer may file a complaint with
the commission for resolution.

Final - 12/29/2021 53 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



Exeter Community Power Aggregation Committee

Additional Requirements for the Multi-Use Energy Data Platform

If and when the Multi-Use Energy Data Platform (Platform) authorized under RSA 378:50-54 becomes
operational, Exeter Community Power and any third-parties under contract that require access to ICD sourced
from the Platform — such as CPCNH and third-parties contracted through CPCNH — will be required to comply
with any Platform User Requirements, Privacy Standards, Annual Attestations, and obligations to report a
security breach pursuant to terms of Settlement Agreement conditionally approved by the PUC in DE 19-197
and detailed in Exhibit C of the Agreement found in Exhibit 1B and as may be actually implemented.

Final - 12/29/2021 54 Exeter Electric Aggregation Plan



/AME] COMMUNITY POWER
TO ADDRESS PUC REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL DETAIL

BACKGROUND

DATE] AME] Town Meeting approved the Electric Aggregation Plan (EAP) for [NA
Commumty power pursuant to RSA 53-E. On October 25, 2021, certain amendments to RSA 53- E went
into effect including a new requirement for EAPs to be submitted to the NH Public Utilities Commission
(PUC) for review and approval before becoming fully operative.

The PUC has completed its review of certain EAPs and denied approval pending resubmission with
additional detail on two parts as follows:

1. "The Commission requires additional detail on the scope and nature of the customer data that
will be in the possession, custody, and control of [the municipality] or its suppliers and vendors,
and the protective measures that will be utilized to protect that data from unauthorized access,
use, destruction, modification, or disclosure.”" (p. 3 of Order)

2. "Lastly, with respect to the “operation and funding” and "methods of entering into and
terminating agreements” criteria of evaluation under RSA 53-E:6, lli(b) and (d), it is unclear
whether [the municipality] intends to serve as the Load Serving Entity (LSE), or whether that
function will be contracted out and, if so, by which entity. We conclude that more detail
describing the structure of the LSE and how the LSE services will be implemented, is necessary
and should be addressed within subsequently filed versions of the Plan." (p. 5 of Order)

The additional required details have been addressed in the attached amended EAP which is further
detailed in a memo from CPCNH [BIRECTOR NAME] (also attached).

ACTION

Should the [GOVERNING BODY] agree with the amendments as proposed, the following motion is
offered for cons:deration

MOVED, that the [G € )Y] approves the amendments to the Electnc A reatton
| Community Power as presented in the [REFEF CE MATERIAL e.g. the agend

Included in this Section:




AT\ COMMUNITY
-"gll)| POWER COALITION
'l OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

For communities, by communities.

To: [INSERTEOVERNINGIEEEY]
From:  [NEERTCPENEIDRECTORANDITITLE]
Date:  [INSEBOATE]

Subject: Amendments to Electric Aggregation Plan for [l Community Power
to address PUC request for additional detail

Oon | the [l Town Meeting approved the Electric Aggregation Plan (EAP) for

Community power pursuant to RSA 53-E. On October 25, 2021, certain
amendments to RSA 53-E went into effect including a new requirement for EAPs to be
submitted to the NH Public Utilities Commission (PUC) for review and approval before
becoming fully operative.

The PUC has, without prejudice, denied approval of the several Electric Aggregation
Plans filed by Members of Community Power Coalition of New Hampshire and based
on the same template used by [l The PUC invited resubmission of plans once
the administrative rules are further along in 